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Chief Executive's Sirategic Report
Yoar anded 31 Qecembaor 2619
Reoview of the Business

Slater and Gordon is one of the UK's leading providers of consumer [egal services, serving customers in
England, Scotland and Wales. Qur mission is to provide high quality, technology-driven legal services that are
accessible to all.

What We Do

We are here to support our customers through many of life's most significant moments: both planned and
unplanned.

From helping people to get back on the road after an accident, to making sure they get the best care and
compensation after an injury. From guiding them through the complexities of divarce to protecting them against
abusive ex-partners, we are always here.

This means that our customers are at the very heart of our business, and that our wide range of specialist legal
and complementary services is built firmly around their needs and expectations.

In any and every event, our team of 1,870 dedicated professicnals are here to take some of the stress away
and deliver justice to all those in need. We can promise this because, guided by our Business Values System
and supported by market-leading technology, our people offer an unsurpassed level of legal expertise and
practical experience. This has been gained aver many years, during which we have achieved successful
outcomes in some of the country’s most high-profile cases.

Yet while we are undeniably a people business — with a firm focus on treating both customers and colleagues
as respected individuals — we are also a technology business. That is because only by continuing to invest in
both people and technology will we continue to deliver exceptional customer service and industry-leading legal
outcomes.

The 2019 Accounts

These accounts represent the consolidated entity, Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited (the "Company’),
and its controlled entities (jointly referred to as "Slater and Gordon” or the "Group”), for the financial year ended
31 December 2019. The comparative results (2018) represent the peried from 22 September 2017 to 31
December 2018. As the Company acquired the Group on 15 December 2017, the trading results in the
comparative period represent the period from 15 December 2017 to 31 December 2018.

Avyear of invostmaent and Optimdsm

| am pleased to report that 2019 was another very successful year for Slater and Gordon, with the business
performing well across a number of key growth areas.

The year saw a significant improvement in our adjusted EBITDA' profitability and operating cash flow. This is
particularly pleasing in the context of our continued investment in the technology required to help secure future
profitable growth and differentiate us from our competitors.

In 2019 the Group achieved an adjusted EBITDA" of £16.3m? {(2018: £1.0m). Operating profit, before non-
recurring items was £5.0m, compared to an operating loss of £5.8m in 2018, Group revenues were £192.9m
in the year (2018: £222.7m) after planned reductions in less profitable channels of activity.

The Group reported a loss before tax of £9.6m after non-recurring items of £6.0m. This compares to a profit
befare tax of £112.2m in 2018, which included a one-off gain on bargain purchase of £134.6m. Operating cash
flow has improved from an outflow of £18.5m in 2018 to an operating cash inflow of £16.0m in 2018.

We continue to invest in technology in line with our strategic ambitions, with a spend of £7.8m on technology
initiatives in 2019 (2018: £6.7m). The net assets at 31 December 2019 were £125.7m, compared with £135.0m
at 2018. The year-end cash position was £26.1m, compared with £11.4m in 2018.

Importantly, we have built on the excellent foundations we laid in 2018 by continuing to invest significantly in
both our technology and our people. This investment has provided us with a framework and structure that has
underpinned a marked improvement in our employee experience and operating performance, which | believe
will help accelerate our growth in 2020 and beyond.

Alongside our improved financial performance, the Group also performed well against targets for intake
volumes, productivity and for improving our success and dilution rates.

[1] Adjusted EBITDA: The Group calculates adjusted EBITDA as operating profit before interest. tax, depreciation, amertisation and excludes non-recurnng tems. The Directors beheve
that adjusted EBITDA is the most appropriate approach far ascertaining the underlying trading performance and trends as it reflects the measures used internally by senier management
for all discussians of performance. Full details are disclosed in note 4.2.

{2] Adjusted EBITDA in 2013 includes the impact of cenversion te IFRS 16. 2619 adjusted EBITDA excluding IFRS 16 is £10.2m,
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Your acdod 39 Docombor 2018

Faay

Qur Executive Leadership Team continues to drive the Group's dynamic strategy.

In 2019 Alicia Alinia, former Joint Managing Director of Personal Injury, moved to head up our new people and
culture function as Chief People Officer. She has already led an ambitious programme designed to revitalise
our culture and introduced our new values system: the Slater and Gordon Way, also known as the S+G Way.
She has also focused on strengthening our people experience through the introduction of a tech-enabled
‘smart’ working culture.

We also welcomed Jon Grainger as Chief information Officer in 2019. Jon has been pivotal to the pace and
ambition of our technological development; quickly embedding Microsoft's most sophisticated software across
our operation to help cur people provide even better customer service.

He has also continued to develop our technology roadmap, which will enable us to keep transforming our
processes across the country.

In January 2020 Nils Stoesser moved from his position as Chairman of the Slater and Gordon board to become
Chief Development Officer. In this new role, Nils has taken responsibility for further development of our group
litigation business, as well as becoming Chief Risk Officer. In addition, Nils will help identify and develop
potential corporate acquisitions and other expansion opportunities. This will be particularly important over the
next 18 months, as we anticipate considerable consolidation in the consumer legal services sectar.

Cur Way of Working

We always strive to recruit the best staff, to uphold the highest legal standards and to provide best in class
expertise. Yet being technically gifted or having the brightest legal minds are not the only qualities we look for
in new colleagues. We are committed to hiring people who challenge our own conventions: questioning
processes that no longer work and removing every roadblock tc exceptional customer service.

To ensure that we are united in delivering the best possible cutcome for customers, our focus is now
underpinned by the S+G Way. This is a new initiative that we rolled out in 2019, which was developed through
a series of workshops and interviews with more than 200 people from right across the business.

It is a set of guiding principles that represent who we are and what we believe in, to ensure that we always
deliver the very best: for each other and our customers.

While many companies have written value statements, we believe that these can be hard to apply to day-to-
day working life. So the S+G Way defines the very specific behaviours and actions that our pecple and our
customers care about most.

These are:

» We do what we say we will

«  Weownit wesortit

¢ \We don't wait, we create

»  We respect and encourage each other
«  We make time to live

Since its introduction, the S+G Way has had a significant impact across the business: delivering greater
engagement, transparency and collaboration.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chief bxecutive's Strategic Report (continued)

Yaar ended 51 Decombor 2018
Oriving Technoalogizal Innovation

To ensure our position as the leading provider of consumer legal services in the UK, we need to take the lead
on technology inngvation in our sector,

With this in mind, Jon Grainger, our new Chief Information Officer, has worked quickly to implement a strategy
aimed at delivering agility, speed and convenience. This strategy is based on three fundamental principles:

« Work Anywhere
We had already rolled out a system that enables our workforce to be highly mobile, and this turned
out be crucial to our remote working capabilities during the Covid-19 crisis. Having the ability to
collaborate, co-author, share information and keep in touch regardless of location enabled a seamiess
and consistent service to our customers. Coupled with a holistic approach to agile working, this
technalogy alsa helps us to dramatically improve our employee experience.

+« Automate Everything
We have adopted an 'automate-first’ approach to solving technology problems and providing new
services ta the market. This has included the development of customer and delivery platforms that use
machine learning, as well as an automated claims system within our personal injury business. This
has enabled us to develop solutions while still delivering an excellent customer experience within the
insurer value chain,

* Create/Disrupt
Our customers and our people are at the very heart of everything we do, so our technology
transformation programme is designed to challenge and improve every aspect of legal service
provision. With this uppermost in mind we are developing a suite of bespoke customer portals for all
service areas. The first of these has been developed for the personal injury area, as well as to support
our group litigation business, notably some 70,000 customers in the VW emissions case.

Pagple and Colture

In 2018, we conducted a thorough review of the culture of our business. This resulted in a new people and
culture function, led by Chief People Offtcer Alicia Alinia, and the development of an inclusive, integrated and
forward-looking people strategy.

Our ambition is to now deliver an enhanced employee experience from the moment people join the business.

A key part of this has been to ensure we have the right talent in the right place tc deliver the right services for
our customers. We also recognise that, in a period of considerable change in cur sector, our capabilities need
to constantly evolve,

The reputation and scale of the business has meant we have always attracted high-quality and interesting
casewaork, which in turn helps us to attract high-calibre talent.

We have also developed a new corporate social responsibility strategy and revised our diversity and inclusion
policy in order to focus on inclusiveness and sustainability.

Along with the launch of the S+G Way, 2019 saw the start of a partnership with The Happiness Index. This
allows us to track the sentiment and engagement of our employees, enabling changes that not only align with
our culture and values but also resonate with our staff.

These changes have included new training programmes, increased clarity of career progression, a structured
induction programme for all new employees and greatly improved channels of communication.

This puts us in an excellent position when looking to attract and retain talented people. Another key
achievement in driving innovation was the creation of a new podcast series; The Case Files. To date we have
achieved in excess of 50,000 downloads, and research shows that we have been effective in both raising
awareness of consumer rights and in changing the public perception of lawyers.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Effective risk management is fundamental to helping the Group deliver its strategic objectives; a fact we
recognised by asking Nils Stoesser to take on the critical role of Chief Risk Officer. The Group has a clear risk
framework, and considers strategic, operational and financial risks on a regular basis, and of course identifies
actions to mitigate those risks.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chiaf Executive's Strategic Report (continued)

Ooportiiniiizs

The introduction of the new Civil Liability Act in April 2021 marks a significant moment for the consumer legal
services industry. We believe this will trigger a period of considerable consolidation and therefore an
opportunity for growth, as we establish new partnerships and relationships in the legal and insurance sectors.

We decided in 2019 that to take advantage of these opportunities we would have to make significant
investments in technology. Innovative technological solutions will drive both the customer service and scale
we need to stay at the forefront of consumer legal services. This has resulted in 18 months of sustained
investment and development in our online platforms and this will continue into 2021.

Credit and Liquidity Management

The main exposure to credit risk in the Group is represented by the receivables (debtors and disbursements)
awing to the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security at the end of the
reporting year, is the carrying amcunt of recognised financial assets, net of any provisions against those
assets, as disclosed in note 1 and note 23.

Liguidity risK is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations asscciated with financial
liakilities. The Group aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generation by its cperations and applying
cash collection targets throughout the Group. The Group also manages liquidity risk by ensuring that adequate
borrowing facilities are maintained.

Broxit

Slater and Gordon continues to follow developments linked to the UK's decision to withdraw from the European
Union closely. A comprehensive risk assessment of the situation to date has concluded that the risk to the
business’ performance is low, but we will continue to keep developments under review.

Coronavirus

During the coronavirus pandemic and subsequent lockdown we have focused on minimising Hs impact, while
aiming to cperate our business as fully as possible.

By the end of the first week of fockdown, 90% of our colleagues were able to work from home. We were able
to do this thanks to our considerable investment in Microsoft technoelogies, which gave us both the hardware
and software platforms and cloud-based security to enable people to work from anywhere. Investment in our
People function also ensured that cur colleagues were supported through multiple channels of communication
at various levels in the organisation.

Our experience throughout the crisis has enabled us to accelerate plans to move towards a new operating
model in a more digitally enabled, flexible working environment. This will allow us to respond to the increasing
demand by our customers to provide digital modes of interaction and service delivery.

It will also ensure that our people will have the option to work from any location where they are most productive:
whether at home or at an intelligently designed office space. We also expect to see benefits to the health and
wellbeing of cur people, as they achieve a better work/life balance, and female leaders enjoy more freedom to
progress their careers, regardless of family commitments.

This new operating model will ultimately see a big reduction in our carbon footprint and improve our efforts as
a sustainable business. We will also drive efficiencies in property costs and, just as importantly, become more
agile and better piaced tc weather future crises.

The financial impact is detailed in the going concern section in the Directors' Repart.
Lagal Action

Slater and Gordon UK brought a claim against Watchstone Group plc (fermerly Quindell plc) in June 2017 for
fraudulent misrepresentation and breach of warranty in relation to the financial performance of the Professional
Services Division of Quindell prior to its acquisition by Slater and Gordon in 2015,

Proceedings were settled out of court during the year, a settlement of £11.0 million was received and this
matter is now closed. Full details are disclosed in note 4.3.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chief Executive's Strategic Repaort {coit
Year ended 31 Dacembar 2018

gt~ e S Y -
Sunsetuant Dvents

In January 2020, the Group converted a £250m convertible loan note issued by Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited
in December 2017 into 2,500 ordinary shares in the Company. See Note 26.

In March 2020, the Company was excited to welcome its new Chairman of the board, John Connolly. John
comes to Slater and Gordon with a wealth of experience in the professional services industry, having been the
CEO and Senior Partner of Deloitte UK for twelve years. More recently, John has chaired a number of FTSE
and private equity backed companies, including his current Chairmanship of G4S.

On 31 March 2020, the Group concluded a tender process and committed to repurchase approximately 2% of
its outstanding shareholder debt from one of its shareholders. This repurchase transaction is expected to
conclude in July 2020. Linked to this debt repurchase, the Company will be reducing and cancelling the
ordinary shares owned by that Shareholder shortly after signature of the accounts.

The Campany created a new class of shares during 2019 (A Ordinary Shares), and in March 2020 repurchased
some of these A Qrdinary Shares, representing approximately 2% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Surmmmary and future Davelopments

The year saw Slater and Gordon take great strides towards its ambition of becoming the leading provider of
consumer legal services in the UK. While 2018 was about stabilising the business, 2019 was about creating
the conditions to propel the business forward.

Consequently, we entered 2020 with a renewed sense of confidence and the business has responded well
despite the Covid-19 pandemic creating some uncertainties.

In fact, the lockdown created the opportunity to accelerate plans around our future operating model, and we
have taken decisive steps in rightsizing our property portfolio as well as moving our people to a smart, agile
and flexible working culture.

The investment in technology in 2018 and 2019 put us at a distinct competitive advantage, as we were able to
move to remote working within days of lockdown beginning.

The coronavirus lockdown has also created a landscape that is ripe for consolidation, and we are confident in
our growth plans for the next 18 months.

With strong momentum already, we will continue to work towards securing that market-leading position.

David Whitmore
Chief Executive QOfficer
30 June 2020

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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saction 172 Statemant
Year endan 21 Dorember 2518

Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited is the parent company of Slater and Gordon UK Limited, an Alternative
Business Structure operating as an independent law firm with its own board and leadership team.

The Directors” Approach

Companies now need to report on how the Directors have carried out their Section 172 duties under the
Companies Act.

In short, Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a Director of a company to act in the way he or she
considers, in good faith, most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as
awhole,

Te do so, section 172 requires a Directar to have regard (amongst other matters) to:

The likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term;

The interests of the company's employees;

The need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

The impact of the company’s operations on the community and environment,

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
The need to act fairly as between members of the company.

~ooooTo

The board should alsc understand the views of the company’s other key stakeholders and describe in the
Annual Report how their interests and the matters set out in section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 have been
considered in board discussions and decision-making.

In discharging our section 172 duty, the Directors of the Company, have given full regard to the factors set out
abave.

Consequsnces of long-term Dacisions

In 2019, the Slater and Gerdon board made a series of strategic decisions for the business. These decisions
were made with due consideration of the potential long-term consequences, and the long-term success of the
business.

Actions included taking strategic decisions on several property transactions, as well as restructuring of
activities, strategic technology investments, consideration of key regutatory changes faced by the business (in
particular the implementation of the Civil Liabilities Act 2018), the creation of a new People and Culture function
and development of a new internal value proposition, and censideration and approval of the group strategy
and budget for 2020.

In assessing the long-term strategy of the business, the board completed a full assessment to identify the
different conseguences, including risk management considerations and scenarios that could arise from
alternative decisions.

Financial performance has also been monitored on a monthly basis, and the Board has no plans to pay
dividends in respect of 2019 or for the foreseeable future; this will continue to be reviewed in line with the
performance of the Group.

Community and the Environment

With technology at the heart of everything we da, it is essential for us to move towards reducing our carbon
footprint in order to remain a sustainable and responsible business. We are doing this by working with our
internal colleagues, strategic suppliers and partners to create a culture that will achieve this by digitalisation
and mobilisation of the workforce.

Our work in this area is fundamental to a responsible business strategy and is monitored by our responsible
business committee as a key priority for our Directors in 2020.

SLATER AN GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Section 172 Statement (continued)
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Yaar ondad 31 Dacemper 2018

Employee Interests
Maintaining a good employee experience is key to staff recruitment and retention. So we have a dedicated

communicationg function that supports employee engagement. Relevant information is shared through
channels such as regular online information updates, employee surveys and face-to-face executive briefings.

Communication with colleagues alsc takes place through a variety of channels including 5+G Colleague
roadshows, videos, blogs, emails, team talks, the Intranet and internal social channels.

In addition to this, over the course of 2019 we have provided a number of staff training programmes including
our solicitor traineeship programme, 15 apprenticeship programmes, a new starter induction training system
and our annual PDR training.

We have also provided extensive system training on our case management systems, speech recognition
software and Microsoft Excel, as well as compliance training on data protection and the updated Solicitors
Regulation Authority (SRA) codes of conduct.

Fostering Businass Relationships

Maintaining healthy relationships with suppliers, stakeholders and regulators is key to the long-term success
of the business, as illustrated in Figure 1.

Figure 1. Slafer and Gordon Stakeholders

With this in mind, the business complies with
various regulatory bodies including the
Soliciters Regulation Authority and the
Financial Conduct Authority. Our Directors
also obtain appropriate information to make
judgements through stakeholder engagement,
day-to-day business interactions, structures or
channeis for engagement. Details on the
Group's supply chain, anti-bribery and
corruption policies are detailed in the

m ‘ - Directors’ Report.
: Legal indurstry

Maintaining a Reputation for High Standards of Business Condunt

For Slater and Gordon, maintaining a reputation for excellent business conduct and standards is a priority. It
underpins everything we do. The S+G Way has been pivotal in setting the framework for our culture; it also
guides the expectations we have of each employee in working with each other, our customers and other

stakeholders toa ensure that we retain both integrity and accountability. Full details of the Board composition
and Directors responsibilities are detailed in the Directors’ Report.

Acting Fairly between Members of the Company
Slater and Gordon exercises its relevant powers in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and

in accordance with relevant internal policies and procedures to ensure it acts fairly as between the Members
of the Company. The board is comprised of:

¢« QurCEQ
s Three hon-executive Directors (NEDs), representing Slater and Gordon’s majority shareholder, one of
whom is the chair
¢+ One NED, representing Stater and Gordon’s minority shareholders
+ Three additional executive Directors
All shareholders therefore have a fair opportunity to provide their views to the board. To ensure probity and

transparency, the board meets at least ten times a year to assess the performance of the Company as part of
its responsibility to ensure long-term success.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ Report
Year andod 21 Deocorobar 2016

The Directors present their report, together with the financial report of the consolidated entity consisting of
Slater and Gordon UK Haldings Limited (the “Company”) and its controlled entities (jointly referred to as the
*Group”), for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. This financial report has been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as adopted by the Eurcpean Union.

Principal Activities

Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited is the ultimate holding company of the Slater and Gordon Group of
companies in the UK and Malta. The principal activities of the Group are to provide consumer and
complementary services,

Results

The consolidated resuits for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out on page 20. No dividend has been
proposed by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2018: £nil).

Directors
The Directors in office at any time during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

« M J Beauchamp (Appointed 18 March 2019)
s« J P Connolly {Appointed 17 March 2020)

s K .JFowlie (Resigned 3 May 2019)

+ M Glengarry {(Appointed 28 February 2019}
+ D S Neave

» N Stoesser

« G JWhite (Appointed 27 June 2019)

+ D JL Whitmore

« AL Wilford (Appointed 14 January 2019}

Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited maintains Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for its UK and
Maltese Directors and officers.

Employee Involvement

The Company's policy is to continuously consult and discuss matters likely to affect employees’ interests and
engagement. The Company has a dedicated Internal Communications function which supports our drive to
engage with our colleagues regularly.

Information is given through media such as regular online information updates, employee surveys and face-
to-face Executive briefings which seek to achieve a common awareness on financial and operational matters
affecting the Company's performance.

Disabled Persons

The Company's policy is to recruit disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill. All necessary
assistance with initial training is given. Once employed, a career plan is developed so as to ensure suitable
opportunities for each disabled person. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for retraining employees
wheo become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities.

Modern Stavery

The Company is committed to ensuring the prevention of modern slavery practices across the Company and in
its supply chains. The Company has a zero-tolerance approach which reflects our commitment to acting ethically
and with integrity in all our business relationships. Anti-slavery awareness has been incorporated within induction
and annual training programmes.

Anti-bribery and Corruption

The Slater and Gordon Group has a group-wide anti-bribery and corruption policy, which is in compliance with
the Bribery Act 2010. Procedures are reviewed periodically to ensure continued effective compliance across the
Group (including the Company).

Political Donations

During the year the Company made no political donations (2018: same).

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ Report ccantauss
Year opndxd 371 Docember 2018

Purpose and Leadership

The mission of Slater and Gordon is to provide high guality, technology-driven legal services to all UK
consumers. This purpose is underpinned by our culture and commitment to be a people business that is
powered by technology.

As detailed in the Section 172 statement above, processes are in place to ensure that the board has a clear
understanding of all shareholder views, including its minority shareholders. The People Committee - a sub-
committee of the board - is tasked not only with setting a consistent HR strategy across the group, but alsoc in
reporting on key employee initiatives to the board at each board meeting. Unfiltered feedback is also shared
with the board after each regular round of ‘Town Halls’. This process ensures the board is aware of the views
of employees and uses these insights to inform its views on the impact of wider business decisions on
employees.

The board introduced the One in 21 Strategy in 2018.
The objectives of this strategy are:

1. To become one fully integrated company
2. To have one culture and way of working
3. To be number one in our chosen markets and the first choice for consumers and colleagues

The strategy is referred to in all Executive Leadership Team colleague communications and the ambitious
outcomes are targets that every member of the workforce is involved in achieving.

Cur people are updated on progress throughout the year, via communication tools that range from maonthly
communications from our CEO, to monthly ‘talking points’ shared with all people managers. In 2019, we
focused on delivering culture change so that key behaviours and ways of working could be established ahead
of delivering a growth strategy in 2020.

This was largely done by launching the $+G Way, a values system for the Group as a whole. it sets out a
shared expectation of how the workforce should collaborate and interact both with customers and with each
other. The board anticipates that the S+G Way will deliver cultural change and an improved employee and
customer experience; the outcome of which will see better engagement reflected in our customer and
employee net promoter scores.

The S+G Way is the foundation of our new competency framework and dunng 2020 we will introduce a
recognition program to celebrate people demonstrating its values.

In addition to HR's standard monitoring and reporting on staff data and issues, the board has also committed
to conducting regular employee engagement surveys through an external supplier in order to track
engagement throughout the business and measure cultural change.

2019 also saw the introduction of a Risk Charter that was created to guide employees on how to manage risk,
meet regulatory obligations and operate to specific standards.

To complete our overhaul of internal policies, two additional policies were rolled out in 2019: ‘Raising Issues
and Concerns’, and our 'Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure’ which will be reviewed annually and may be
amended or replaced at any time.

Our Whistfeblowing policies state that the first pont of call to report a concern or issue is the staff member's
line manager, and the second is an HR business partner. In addition to this mechanism, 2019 also saw the
launch of ‘Safecall’, a confidential telephone helpiine for the warkforce to report any concerns.

Board Composition and Directors’ Responsibiiities
p

As befits a business such as ours, the board is comprised of individuals with a range and balance of skills,
backgrounds, experience and knowledge. The Chairman is effective, promoting open debate and facilitating
constructive discussion, and individual Directors have sufficient capacity and opportunity to make a valuable
contribution. John Connolly was newly appointed as the Chairman of the Company in March 2020 and brings
a wealth of experience as both a Chairman and Director to the board. Leveraging this experience, the
Chairman consistently encourages open and canstructive debate amongst his fellow Directors.

The roles of Chairman and CEO are held by separate individuals. Throughout 2018, there were three non-
executive Directors (exciuding the Chairman), and two executive Directors on the board {excluding the CEQ).
Therefore 60% of the board were non-executive Directors (NEDs).

Currently, there are three NEDs (exciuding the Chair), and three executive Directors (excluding the CEO) on
the board. Therefore, 50% of the board remain NEDs.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ Report conuousad
Year anded 31 Decembear 2013
Board Composition and Directors’ Responsibilities {(continued)

buring 2019, the board met fifteen times. Typically, unless a meeting is held in short order, the Directors are
given four weeks to prepare their items for the next meeting. Board packs contain an action list that keeps
track of the status of every assigned task given to the Directors, including associated delivery dates. Directors
are given a minimum of two days to read the board pack before each board meeting, and each item is allocated
sufficient time for full discussion at the meeting. The Chairman ensures that a full range of critical matters from
across the business are scheduled for discussion at the board level. In particular, the board will always hear
feedback from the People Committee and Audit and Risk Committee about key matters arising from their
meetings. In addition to this, the board annually undertakes an immersive strategy session over a number of
days, to ensure that all aspects of the business and its strategy have received due consideration.

The board has delegated its risk function to the Board Audit and Risk Committee, and their remuneration
function to the People Committee. The terms of reference for each committee set out the authorities delegated
to them, and the chair of each committee (each an NED) reports to the board at each meeting.

Importantly, board members come from a diverse range of backgrounds including financial investment and
accountancy, insurance, law, investment management and management consultancy. This ensures that a
broad range of knowledge, skill sets and approaches inform every board decision. Further, the board actively
seeks to align the business with strategic commercial partners who embrace the same visicn.

The Chair and Company Secretary periodically review the Company's governance processes to ensure they
support effective decision-making. The General Counsel and Company Secretary, Emma Humphrey, attends
all board meetings and is respansible for advising the board on all governance matters, ensuring that all
Directors have direct access to this advice.

While all of our Directors are experienced in their roles, further work is currently underway within the General
Counsel's office to ensure that all Directors receive clear written guidance on their statutory and shareholder
responsibilities and professional development opportunities pertinent to their role.

With this in mind, the General Counsel's office is currently undertaking a thorough review of corporate
governance across the Group to ensure that the Group subscribes to a responsible level of decision making,
catering for the interests of all key stakeholders. To reinforce this, the General Counsel's office will be
conducting a board effectiveness study during 2020.

In 2019, the Group introduced new Delegations of Authority Guidelines (the "DoA”). The DoA sets out to whom
the board may delegate decision-making authority to run the business on a day-to-day basis. However,
decisions around external commitments which are business-critical in nature, or which represent a high
financial commitment, remain reserved to the board of Directors.

Conflicts of interest are managed by a register of interests for board members and the Articles of Association
of the board sets out how conflicts of interest should be decided. The beard is currently provided with:

s An annual report from an independent auditor who audits the financial statements of the Group. In
2019, an independent auditor also provided a report in relation to the Company’s IT environment

« Financial reports and key performance indicators from the CFO

e Workforce data from the CPO (HR)

* Feedback from employees via employment engagement surveys and colleague roadshows

+ Regular ‘deep dive’ reports from each area of the Group

« Consumer data from research conducted by the Chief Customer Officer {(Marketing)

All material provided to the board for consideration must go through a rigorous internal review process, to
include approval by the Executive Leadership Team where appropriate, and by the CEO, to ensure the
reliability of business information being provided to the board for consideration.

Where it is appropriate for the board to appoint external advisors (in particular to provide clear guidance on
their statutory responsibilities as Directors) this is commissioned by the General Counsel. Where ongoing
monitoring of a particular business matter is required, the board will appoint a dedicated sub-committee of the
board - with a clear terms of reference - to monitor progress of that matter and report back to the board at
regular intervals.

The Company will also provide periodic presentations of operational performance to the minority shareholders
and their appointed representative on the board: a Non-Executive Director who specifically represents the
interests of the minority shareholders. Effective and efficient communication of information with all
Shareholders is ensured through the appointment of an experienced managing agent: Global Loan Agency
Services.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Opportunity and Risk

The board works to promote the long-term, sustainable success of the Company by identifying opportunities
to create and preserve value and by establishing oversight for the tdentification and mitigation of risks.

One of the values that make up the S+G Way is 'We Don't Wait, We Create’, which encapsulates our drive to
create solutions and identify future opportunities.

In 2019, we undertook extensive market research into the UK legal industry, to find out who our customers
are, the types of products they demand and the best ways in which we can meet their needs. Our findings
helped to identify six key customer segments, which now inform and direct the design of our products and
services.

To test our product and service development, we also carry out robust user testing prior to release. This user
feedback helps to verify that the decisions we make about our communication and technology solutions truly
meet customer needs and expectations.

Our quality control processes also involve closely monitoring and responding to customer feedback via our
complaints procedures, as well as continucusly monitoring Google and Trustpilot reviews and our customer
Net Promoter Scores (NPS).

In addition to all of this, our partnership with The Happiness Index has helped us to identify pockets of low
engagement and take appropriate remedial action, For example, in 2019 we responded to low opinion of our
communication channels by investing in a new digital workspace — effectively a modern Intranet - fully aligned
te cur technology investment. This enables us to communicate, collaborate and innovate far more effectively.

The Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) is responsible for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Group’s external auditors and for reviewing the Group's internal financial controls and the audit process. It
assists the Board in seeking to ensure the integrity of the financial and non-financial information supplied to
external stakeholders and that such information presents a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group's performance and position.

The board considers that the ARC'’s responsibilities include:

+« The principles of and developments in, financial reporting including the applicable accounting
standards and statements of recommended practice

« Financial performance, including liquidity and matters which may influence the presentation of the
financial statements

« The principles of, and developments in, company law, sectar specific laws and other relevant corporate
legislation

+ Making recommendations to the board on the Group's risk strategy and risk appetite

+ QOverseeing the design and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management framework relative to the
Group's activities, including those that would threaten its business model

« Reviewing the adequacy and quality of the risk management function and the effectiveness of risk
reporting

The Committee reviews the effectiveness, objectivity and independence of the external auditors and also
considers the scope of their work and fees paid for audit and non-audit services.

The activities of the ARC are supported by a dedicated risk and assurance function, which sits within the Data
and Assurance team under the leadership of the Chief Risk Officer.

Slater and Gordon is committed to identifying and understanding, environmental, social and governance risks
and ensuring that the appropriate decisions are made across the Group and its supply chains. The ARC
therefore aims to ensure that all stakeholders are safeguarded and treated fairly and with dignity. Our Risk
Charter, in conjunction with our corporate social responsibility programme, sets out all stakeholders’
responsibilities in this regard. Through our risk and assurance programmes we will be working with our people
and procurement functions to strengthen our interal controls framework and systems.

The board has determined its risk appetite and the Group’s key risk indicators are reviewed on a monthly basis.
There is also further work underway to align subsidiary key risk indicators to the Group position. In addition to
this, the board keeps the risk appetite statement and risk framework under active review, and both of these
documents require board approval on an annual basis.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The ALidit and Risk Committee (continued)

Identifying potential problems is a vital part of managing risk, so in line with the Group Raising Issues and
Concerns Policy there are various reporting channels in place for each business unit. These are set out within
the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedures, together with local business unit reporting procedures.

A full group risk report is presented to and reviewed by the ARC when it convenes at its quarterly meetings.
The ARC reports to the board on all matters within its remit and the committee makes whatever
recommendations to the board that it deems appropriate.

Remuneration

The board promotes executive remuneration structures that are aligned to the long-term sustainable success
of the Company, taking into account pay and conditions elsewhere in the Company.

2019 saw the rolling out of harmonised benefits across the Group. Alongside this was a new Group incentive
Plan, designed to reward the results and behaviours that help to drive the profitable growth of Slater and
Gordon by:

(1Y Incentivising superior results, including cash management measures.
(2) Promoting the values, behaviours and actions which will help the business advance.
(3) Rewarding results and behaviour in a clear, consistent, fair and straightforward manner.

The Group Incentive Plan offers the opportunity to earn a market-competitive percentage of salary in return for
results achieved. Annual performance reviews are aligned with the incentive.

The plan has been implemented across the organisation, but adjustments have been made for its application
across different levels, roles and responsibilities. For example, there is a specific plan for the executive
leadership team and senior management whereby the increased seniority of the employee means closer
alignment of the individual awards to group performance aver individual attainment.

The executive leadership team and senior management remuneration is closely aligned to the results of a bi-
annual performance review. This performance rating is based not only on individual output but alse functional
and group performance on a financial and non-financial basis. Further governance is enabled via the People
Committee.

With regard to the mechanism for remunerating Directors, Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited, a direct subsidiary
of the Company, controls the pay for all Directors of Slater and Gordon Group companies under the supervision
of the People Committee. All non-executive Directors have a services agreement with Slater & Gordon (UK} 1
Limited, which sets out the scope of their responsibilities to the Group.

The Peopio Commitiee

The People Committee is made of up two independent NEDs and has responsibility for setting the overall
remuneration policy and making decisions about specific remuneration arrangements in the broader context
of employee remuneration throughout the Group. This involves approving all awards under the incentive plan
and the wider remuneration package for all Directors, executive leadership team members and other members
of the senior management team.

Further, the Company participates in an annual compensation survey, which provides benchmarking data for
all roles within the organisation, ensuring a robust salary review process and informing a competitive range of
rewards for all employees in the context of their local market. In late 2019, supported by an external pay
benchmarking specialist, we commenced a group-wide job levelling and pay review exercise to ensure that
every role is gaverned and rewarded competitively.

Full and detailed calibration of group-wide pay awards and incentives is also undertaken, which includes
visibility of any gender pay gap. In fact, we have gone beyond government requirements in our reperting of
gender pay gap data, and have also signed up to the government's Think, Act, Report campaign, which
promotes gender equality at work,

In addition to all of these positive changes to our remuneration and benefits packages, from mid-2019 we have
been offering enhanced family-friendly leave payments to all levels of the workforce.

This involved standardisation of maternity, enhanced maternity and paternity pay for all colleagues across the
group, including voluntary benefits. We also launched a colleague discount hub.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Cur Diversity and inclusion Policy

The aim of this policy is to support a diverse and inclusive workplace where all members of the workforce feel
free to be themselves and to thrive. This is aligned with the S+G Way and applies equally to the executive
leadership team, from whom the executive Directors are appaointed.

Slater and Gordon is also a ‘Diversity Champion’ member of Stonewall, with the People Committee enabling
four diversity and inclusion networks, each with its own executive spansor. The People Committee regularly
reports on diversity and inclusion initiatives to the board, and a majority Director is the Chairman of the People
Committee, to ensure sufficient rigour and independence of that sub-committee.

Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Group manages its financing via a shareholder loan facility which, including accrued interest, is £30.0m
as at 31 December 2019 and is fully drawn down {2018 £22.4m). The Group also takes advantage of a working
capital facility to ensure that the short-term liquidity of the business is also managed, and the Group can fulfil
its obligations when they fall due. The working capital facility is £30.0m at 31 December 2019 (2018: £20.0m)
with £16.5m drawn as at 31 December 2019 (2018 £9.1m).

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net assets of £125.7 million and cash of £26.1 million. The Group has
prepared cash flow forecasts for the foreseeable future based on key assumptions. The key drivers of going
concern for the Group are the achievement of revenues, management of working capital cycle providing cash
self-sufficiency in the Group, the level of case intake based on a strong pipeline and the likely future value of
this work. Management has considered these drivers together with the forecasts and projected cash flow
patterns of the Group for the foreseeable future being a period of 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements.

The business has considered the impact of Covid-19 on its business. Covid-19 will have a number of impacts
with a reduction in road traffic leading to a reduction in read traffic accidents and less demand for hire cars and
repairs, fewer personal injury claims being incurred due to fess movement of the population in public places,
temporary restriction on face to face medical examination and rehabilitation services, temporary closure of
court faciliies leading to a slowdown in closure of open cases and delay in completion of property
conveyancing matters, which could have a negative impact on the revenue and cash received into the
business. This impact is mitigated in part by reduction in variable marketing costs, participation in the HMRC
Furlough and VAT deferral schemes, reduced cperational costs due to the remote working environment and
strong cost management.

The Group has used the 2020 budget as its base case and flexed this for a fall in intake volumes of between
50% to 70% for a period of three months and reducing to a fall of between 20% to 35% for a further three to
four months. It is expected that business volumes will return to the base case levels of activity in October
2020. For 2020, this results in an impact on revenue of {17)%,and cash flow of (24)% versus budget. Under
this forecast the business would still have a minimum of £7.5m of cash headroom over its shareholder
covenants and a minimum of £13.9m of cash headroom on its undrawn working capital facility.

In addition to the revised forecast (referred to as ‘Moderate’) a number of downside scenarios have been
considered {namely, ‘Significant and 'Severe’). In respect of the main income streams (Personal Injury,
Consumer Legal Services, Health and Motor), in the Significant scenario these include reductions in intake
volumes of 50% to 70% for three to four months, and 25% to 70% for a further three to six months. For the full
year this has an impact on revenue of {22)% and cashflow of (48)% versus budget. Under the Severe scenaric
these include reductions in intake volumes of 50% to 75% for three to six months, and 25% to 70% for at least
three months and in most streams until the end of the year. For the full year this has an impact on revenue of
(28)% and cashflow of (63)% versus budget.

Even under the most pessimistic modelled scenario, there are sufficient mitigating actions available to the
business to ensure it would be able to meet its liabilities and remain within its sharehclder covenants for a
period of more than 12 months.

The Company's projections for the period to July 2021 including receipts and payments indicate that Slater
and Gordon expects to pay all its abligations to all stakeholders. Business activity and cash flows are monitored
on a regular weekly basis and continue to be satisfactory. Regular financial forecasts are prepared to monitor
the firms funding requirements through retained profits and borrowing facilities, and projected compliance with
shareholders covenants.

The management has reasonable expectations that the Company has adequate resources to continue trading
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the management continues to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for preparing these financial statements.
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Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement

The board is responsible for overseeing and fostering meaningful engagement with all stakeholders, including
the workforce. Just as importantly, it has a responsibility to have a proper regard for their views when taking
decisions.

Similarly, the board understands its duty to treat clients, and each other, with mutual respect and trust. With
this in mind, Slater and Gordon will roll out a hoard-approved corporate and social responsibility strategy in
2020, which comprises three key areas: pro bono, community and the environment.

This will work in concert with the business’ evolving environmental policy, which will include the property
strategy deliverables and establish the document management strategy for the Group. The policy is designed
to introduce measures that will ultimately reduce the carbon footprint of the Group.

Together with the ongoing initiatives to promote the $+G Way, enhance dialogue with staff and stakeholders
and manage risk, we believe that this new social responsibility strategy puts the business on a firm footing with
regard to all stakeholder relationships and engagement.

To make Slater and Gordon as inclusive and supportive as possible, we also support an active Employee
Assistance Programme, which is a confidential service designed to help staff with life's ups and downs, both
at home and at work. This provides our colleagues with a range of professional services, including counselling,
either over the telephone or face-to-face.

And because clients are always at the heart of our thinking, we also provide a formal complaints process for
clients whereby the Client Care Team provides details of any complaints to senior management for further
review and action. The section 172 statement earlier in this document provides additional information relating
to the board and the Company's dialogue with stakeholders.

Auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed as auditor on 1 November 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 and subsequent financial periods. A resolution to appoint Deloitte as auditor was proposed
at the board meeting of 25 September 2019 on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee. The
Directors unanimously passed the resolution to appeint Deloitte as auditor at that meeting.

Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

- 80 far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor
is naware; and
the Director has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of $418 of the
Companies Act 2006. Deloitte LLP has expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors and
appropriate arrangements have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditors in the
absence of an Annual General Meeting.
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Directors” Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framewark™. Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
. prepare the financial statements on the geing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

+« properly select and apply accounting policies;

+« present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

» provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity's financial positicn and financial performance; and

+« make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

b

David Whitmore Alison Wilford
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

30 June 2020
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NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S BEFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SLATER AND GURDION
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Opinien and Report on tha audit of the financial statoments

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements of Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited {the ‘parent company’) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent
company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board {IASB);

= the parent company's financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework”: and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 20086.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent company statement of financial position;
the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated statement of cash flows; and

the related consolidated notes 1 to 26 and Company notes 1-9.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements
is applicable Jaw and IFRSs as adopted by the European Unicn. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the
‘FRC's"} Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conciusions relating to going condern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:
= the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or
» the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Qther information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information is comprised of information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s repert thereon. Our opinien
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our repaort, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFDRT TO [HE MENBERS OF
UK HOLDINGS LIMETED (SONT

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auvditors responsibilitine for the audit of tha finanmal statemeants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www. fre org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other lagal and ragulatory requircments

Opininns on othor matters prescriboed by the Companies Act 2008
3 t ¥ f

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= theinformation given in the Chief Executive’s strategic report and the Directors' report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Chief Executive's strategic report and the Directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Chief Executive’s
strategic report or the Directors’ report.

fatters on wihich wa aroragierad 1o rooort by cacaption

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeqguate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or
» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Usa of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’'s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

L0

e

Heather J Crosby BSc ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Manchester

30 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Révenue - - -3 S 192839

Cost of sales {41,627) (55,334}
Gross profit 151,262 167,333
Operating expenses befare non-recurring items {146,300) {172,973)

Operating profit/ (foss) before non-recurring items 4,962 (5,640)

Non-recurring items 4 {6.013) 119,980
Operating (loss) / profit 4 {1,051) 114,340
Net finance costs 7 {8,576) (2,166)
(Loss) ! profit before tax (9,627) 112,174
Income tax 8 {253) (85)
(Loss) / profit and total comprehensive {loss} / income {9,880) 112,089

The Company was incorporated on 22 September 2017. The comparative period financial infermation within the financial
statements therefore covers the 15 month pericd ended 31 December 2018,

The total comprehensive (loss) / income for the current and preceding periods arises wholly from the Group’s continuing
operations,

The accompanying notes on pages 24 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statemernt of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
FProperty, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Deferred tax assets
Work in progress
Trade and other receivables

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Deferred tax assets
Work in progress
Trade and other receivables
Cash

Total current assets

Total assets

“Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Current {ax
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Loans

Total non-current liabilities

Total !iabilities .

“Netassets

Equity

Share premium
_Retained earnings

10
25
11
12
13

11
12
13
14

15
25

16

15

25

16
17

18

Total equity attributablér loequﬂy holder; in th-e-(-:oﬁ\p:énry

“restated

11,709 17,518
4,946 5636
18,811 -
925 938
49,229 46,377
49,747 39,975
135,367 110,445
1,815 3,036
77,165 87,569
124,979 151,587
26,082 11,351
230,041 253,543
365,408 363,988
152,885 171,449
5111 -
2,950 3,897
10,187 15,593
171,133 190,938
12,078 12,963
23,727 -
2733 2,649
30,029 22,444
68,567 38,056
239700 228,995
125,708 134,993
23,549 22,904
102,159 112,082
125,708

134,993

The accompanying notes on pages 24 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30 June 2020.

They were signed on its behalf by:

\ -
v—

David Whitmore
Chief Executive Officer

Company number: 10977311

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Alison Wilford
Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eauity

Balance at 22 September 2017
Profit after tax for the period - - -
Total comprehenswe income for the penod -

Transactions with owners in their capacrty as owners

Issue of ordinary shares 18 22,904
Total transactlons W|th owners in thelr capaaty as owners 22,504

i Balanc;;; at 31 December 2018. T - 7”;2,_9104 :
Change in accountmg standards 25 -
Restated balance at 1 Janaery“ 2010 —__22 904-

Loss after tax for the year -
Total comprehenswe Ioss for the year ) o B -

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

Issue of ordinary shares 18 ) 645
_Total transactlons with owners |n thelr capal:lty as owners S 7@ o
Balance as at 31 December 2019 23 549

Total
£°000
112,089 112,089
112,089 112,089
- 22,904
- 22,904
112,088 134,993
(50} (50}
112,039 134,943
(9,880) (9,880)
{9,880) (9,880)
. 645
. 645

102,159 125708

The Company was incorporated on 22 September 2017, The comparative period financial information within the financial

statements therefore ¢overs the 15 month period ended 31 December 2018.

The accompanying notes on pages 24 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SLATER AND GORDCN UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidaied Statement of Cash Flows

Operating activities
(Loss) / profit before tax (9,627) 112,174
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4 1,223 1,570
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4 4,288 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 5,861 5,061
Finance costs 7 8,733 2,266
Interest income 7 (157) (100)
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 104 (30)
Gain on bargain purchase 21 - (134 634)
Changes in working capital:
Decrease in receivables 16,836 5,885
Decrease in work in progress 7,552 8,075
Decrease in payables (12,843) (16,152)
Decreaseinprovisions ... .o@zmay 0 (3159
Cash generated / {used in) operations 17,636 (19,044}
Interest received 7 157 100
Interest paid 7 (1.848) (613)
Income tax received 30 1,065
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities ' 15,975  (18492)
I'hvesting act‘ivitfe;”h S - ' .
Payment for plant, equipment & software development {696) (1.979)
Proceeds from sale of plant, equipment & software development 8 1,220
Cash acquired through business combination 21 - 10,558
Consideration paid on acquisition 21 - (”747;)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from |nvestmg a-c"ﬁ\?iti.és o (68) N 9052
ETEEEEIn—g_aE.CE;"”— bivhugepins._ Reiafotrhofobebet e XIE20 - it
Issue of share capital 18
Loan drawdown
Repayment of lease liabilities 25
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing activites
ﬁ;{increase in cash and cash equivalents o
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year / pericd
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year / period ?J

The Company was incorporated on 22 September 2017. The comparative peried financial information within the financial
statements therefore covers the 15 month period ended 31 December 2018

The accompanying notes on pages 24 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Statemeapt of Significant Accounting Paolicies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated,

{a) Basis of preparation of the financial report

Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a private company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006. The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its controlled entities referred to in note 20, together referred to as the Group and individually as Group
Entities.

This financial report is a general purpese financial report that has been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, Interpretations and other applicable authoritative pronouncements of
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Companies Act 2006 in the United Kingdom.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors as at the date of the Directors’ report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling (GBP) which is the functional currency and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000), except when otherwise indicated.

The statement of financial position at 31 December 2018 contains a restatement to decrease current trade and other
payables by £13.0m to £171.4m and increase non-current trade and other payables by the same amount. This correctly
reports the aged split of legal creditors, reflecting the dates that these items fall due.

Historical cost convention

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by revaluations to fair value for
certain classes of assets as described in the accounting policies.

By publishing the Company financial statements here together with the Group financial statements the Company is taking
advantage of the exemption in s408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement and related
notes that form part of these approved financial statements.

Change of accounting reference date

The comparative periad financial information within the financial statements covers a 15 month accounting period ended
31 December 2018. The Company was incorporated on 22 September 2017,

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statement requires the use of certain estimates and judgements in applying the Group's
accounting palicies. Those estimates and judgements that are significant to the financial report are disclosed in note 2.

Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Group manages its financing via a shareholder loan facility which, including accrued interest, is £30.0m as at 31
December 2019 and is fully drawn down (2018 £22.4m). The Group also takes advantage of a working capital facility to
ensure that the short-term liquidity of the business is also managed, and the Group can fulfil its obligations when they fall
due. The working capital facility is £30.0m at 31 December 2019 (2018; £20.0m} with £16.5m drawn as at 31 December
2019 (2018: £9.1m).

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net assets of £125.7 million and cash of £26.1 million. The Group has prepared cash
flow forecasts for the foreseeable future based on key assumptions. The key drivers of going concern for the Group are
the achievement of revenues, management of working capital cycle providing cash self-sufficiency in the Group, the level
of case intake based on a strong pipeline and the likely future value of this work. Management has considered these drivers
together with the forecasts and projected cash flow patterns of the Group for the foreseeable future being a period of 12
months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

The business has considered the impact of Covid-19 on its business. Covid-19 will have a number of impacts with a
reduction in road traffic leading to a reduction in road traffic accidents and less demand for hire cars and repairs, fewer
personal injury ciaims being incurred due to less movement of the population in public places, temporary restriction on
face to face medical examination and rehabilitation services, temporary closure of court facilities leading to a slowdown in
closure of open cases and delay in completion of property conveyancing matters, which could have a negative impact on
the revenue and cash received into the business. This impact is mitigated in part by reduction in variable marketing costs,
participation in the HMRC Furlough and VAT deferral schemes, reduced operational cosis due to the remote working
environment and strong cost management.

The Group has used the 2020 budget as its base case and flexed this for a fall in intake volumes of between 50% to 70%
for a period of three menths and reducing to a fall of between 20% to 35% for a further three to four months. It is expected
that business volumes will return to the base case levels of activity in October 2020. For 2020, this results in an impact on
revenue of (17)%.and cash flow of (24)% versus budget. Under this forecast the business would still have a minimum of
£7.5m of cash headroom over its shareholder covenants and a minimum of £10.9m of cash headroom on its undrawn
working capital facility.
SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continuad)

1

i Statement of Sigmificant Accounting Policias (zontinuso
(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report {continued)
Going Concern (continued)

In addition to the revised forecast (referred to as ‘Moderate’) a number of downside scenarios have been considered
{namely, 'Significant’ and ‘Severe’}. In respect of the main income streams (Personal Injury, Consumer Legal Services,
Health and Motor), in the Significant scenaric these include reductions in intake volumes of 50% to 70% for three to four
months, and 25% o 70% for a further three to six months. For the full year this has an impact on revenue of (22}% and
cashflow of (48)% versus budget. Linder the Severe scenario these include reductions in intake velumes of 50% to 75%
for three to six months, and 25% to 70% for at least three months and in most streams until the end of the year. For the
full year this has an impact on revenue of (28)% and cashflow of (63)% versus budget.

Even under the most pessimistic modelled scenario, there are sufficient mitigating actions available to the business to
ensure it would be able 1o meet its liabilities and remain within its shareholder covenants for a period of more than 12
months.

The Company's projections for the period to July 2021 including receipts and payments indicate that Slater and Gordon
expects to pay all its obligations to all stakeholders. Business activity and cash flows are monitored on a regular weekly
basis and continue to be satisfactory. Regular financial forecasts are prepared to manitor the firms funding requirements
through retained profits and borrowing facilities, and projected compliance with shareholders covenants.

The management has reasonable expectations that the Company has adequate resources to continue trading for the
foreseeable future, Accordingly, the management continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for preparing
these financial statements.

{b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are those of the consolidated entity, comprising the financial statements of the parent
entity and of all entities which the parent entity controls. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies which may exist. Al intercompany balances and transactions, including any
unrealised profits or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is established and are de-recognised from the date that control ceases.

{c) Revenue

Fees Biiled - Provision of | eqal Services

«  Personal injury Law Claims

The personal injury law practice operates on the basis of No Win — No Fee conditiona! fee arrangements, whereby fees
are earned only in the event of a successful outcome of a customer's claim. In some cases, fees may be fixed, depending
on the stage at which a matter concludes. For some arrangements, fees are fixed as a specified percentage of damages
awarded under a claim.

In personal injury matters, contracts with customers generally comprise a single distinct performance obligation, being the
provisicn of services in pursuit of the successful settlement of a customer's claim, and the transaction price is allocated to
this single performance obligation. Some contracts contain multiple deliverables — such as legal services in respect of a
statutory claim and a cemman kaw claim, or initial pre-issue work and litigation work. In such circumstances, these multiple
deliverables are considered to represent a single distinct perfformance obligation. This is considered by management as
an accurate method of the transfer of services.

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of a service is transferred to the customer. The Group
recognises revenue in respect of personal injury matters "over time” {(as opposed to at a "paint in time”). Where a contract
has only been partially completed at the year-end date, revenue represents the fair value of the services provided to date
based on the stage of completion of the performance obligation at the statement of financial date. The net movement in
work in progress is disclosed separately within revenue.

The Group arranges for the disbursement activities on behalf of the customer; however, it dees not control the output from
those activities. The Group cannot influence the content of the medical reports or court filings; therefore, no profit margin
is recognised on the activities and the customers are charged the direct cost incurred by the Group. As such, the Group
acts as an agent for disbursements, which are only recognised when it is assessed that a reimbursement will be received
from the customer or on his or her behalf. The disbursements are treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for
the expected reimbursement does not exceed the relevant costs incurred. The amount of any expected reimbursement is
reduced by an allowance for non-recovery based on past experience.

A receivable in relation to these services is recognised on settlement of the customer matter and when a bill has been

invoiced: as this is the paint in time that the consideration is uncenditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tcontimuody

1. Statumeny of Stgrficant Accounting Policies i,

{c) Revenue (continued)
»  Consumer Legal Services

Revenue from the provision of general legal services, including group litigation, is recognised over time in the accounting
period when services are rendered. This includes fixed fee arrangements, where revenue is recognised based on the stage
of completion with reference to the actual services provided as a proportion of the total services expected to be provided
under the contract. In fee for service contracts, revenue is recognised up to the amount of fees that the Group is entitled
to invoice for services performed to date based on contracted rates. The net movement in work in progress is disclosed
separately within revenue.

Certain group litigation matters are undertaken on a partially funded basis. The Group has arrangements with third party
funders to provide a portion of the fee's receivable on a matter over time as services are performed. In such arrangements,
the funded portion of fees is billed regularly over time and is not contingent on the successful outcome of the litigation.

A receivable in relation to these services is recognised when a bill has been invoiced; as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

*  Other Legal Services

Revenue from Road Traffic Accidents (‘RTA") and Employer Liability/Public Liability (“‘EL/PL") files is recognised over the
life of the case based on prescribed milestones in a matter. In some cases, fees may be fixed, depending on the stage at
which a matter concludes. For some arrangements, fees are fixed as a specified percentage of damages awarded under
a claim,

Revenue has been recognised for Noise Induced Hearing Loss (“NIHL"} files that have settled during the year ended 31
December 2019, Any files that are in progress as at 31 December 2019 have no revenue recognised due te the inherent
uncertainty over the consideration to be achieved in each successful matter,

The Group has determined that no significant financing component exists in respect of the provision of legal services
revenue streams, This is because a substantial amount of the consideration promised by the customer is variable subject
to the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event that is not substantially within the control of the customer or the
Group

Ancillary revenue - Pravision of Non-legal Services

« Vehicle Hire and Repair

Revenue from the provision of car repair services is recognised on completion of all repair work and upon the customer
signing a “customer satisfaction note” in taking back possession of the car. The amount of revenue recognised is the
amount as agreed in writing between the parties prior to the service being provided in the repair contract.

Revenue from the provision of car hire and cost recovery services are recognised over the time that the services are
performed, being the period between the commencement of the car hire and settlement of costs through the Third-Party
Insurer (“TPI1”). The amount of revenue recognised is the amount as agreed in writing between the parties prior to the
service being provided in the hire rental agreement.

Work in progress is only included in revenue te the extent that it is highly probable that the cumuilative amount of revenue
recagnised in respect of a contract at the end of a reporting period will not be subject to significant reversal when a matter
is concluded. A dilution rate is applied on the invoice to recognise the fact that there may be a settlement adjustment with
the insurer if the insurer disputes any costs. This also takes into account the fact that some cases may not be ‘no fault'.
Accrued income is recorded based on the provision of car recovery services where the services provided overlap the year
end date and the final invoice has not been billed to the customer.

A receivable in relation to these services is recognised when a bill has been issued, as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required befare the payment is due.

For car hire and repair services provided for not at fault customers, the Group acts as a principal. Although the services
are provided by third party suppliers, the Group has the primary responsibility to ensure that the services have been
delivered to the customers. The Group cannot vary the prices set by the supplier, as it is governed by an industry framework
and the Group collects the revenue from the customer and bears all credit risk.

e Medical Reports and Rehabilitation Services

Revenue from the provision of medical appointments and rehabilitation services is recognised at a point in time. For medical
appointments, the revenue is recognised when the medical report is received from the medical expert. The amount of
revenue recognised is based on the fee structure. This value remains in accrued income until the medical report is issued
to the Instructing Party (“IP”) at which point a request for payment is raised. For rehabilitation services, the revenue is
recognised when the course of treatment is completed, and the final assessment or discharge report is issued to the IP.
The amount of revenue recognised is based on the fee structure agreed with the IP. A receivable in relation to these
services is recognised when a bill has been issued, as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(montiuod:

1. Statamiant of Jignificant Accounting Falicies (continuad)
{d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and short-term deposits with an ariginal
maturity of three months or less. It includes any amounts held in escrow. For the purposes of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
banking overdrafis,

Under the Solicitors Accounts Rules 2019 the Group is required to have a separate bank account to hold and receive client
money. This must be under the name of the relevant entity and the name of the account must also include the word
‘client’. All client money must be held in a client account. Client monies do not appear in the financial statements.

{e) Receivables

Collectability of trade debtors is reviewed at each reporting period. Management considers whether an impairment of
debtors is required based on the ageing profile and uses calculated historic rates or recovery to determine the required
impairment. Debts that are known to be uncollectable are written off when identified.

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 applying the simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses. This uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit loss, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit and market risk
characteristics and the days overdue. For trade receivables in Consumer Legal Services, the expected loss rates are based
on the three year historic default rate experienced for each aged group of items. The rates range from 0.16% for 0-30 days
to 2.86% for 61-90 days and 100% for over 90 days. For all other trade receivables there is no history of credit loss owing
to the nature of the counterparties. Further details of the credit loss provision are disclosed in note 25.

Disbursements are only recognised when it is assessed that a reimbursement will be received frem the customer or on his
ar her behalf. The dishursements are treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the expected reimbursement
does not exceed the relevant costs incurred.

The amount of any expected reimbursement is reduced by an allowance for non-recovery based on past experience.

Accrued income represents the revenue recognised in accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policy to the extent
it has not been invoiced.

1] Payables

Trade payables and legal creditors are obligations to pay for services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
husiness from suppliers. Trade payables and legal creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. The Group has a funding facility in place whereby a third party will lend on expected agreed costs and paid
disbursements at a given interest rate on personal injury (No Win - No Fee)} cases. This facility is disclosed in other
creditors.

(9} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable
amount from those assets. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value
in use is based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects
the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Depreciation

The depreciable amounts of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, commencing
from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

The depreciation rates used for each class of assets are:

Clasy ot tiaed as3a IR R DAL A D ER TRt NS S

Property, Plant & Equipment 3-15years Straight Line and Diminishing Value
Leasehold Improvements Length of iease Straight Line

An asset’s residual value and useful life is reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reperting period. An
asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. Any impairment losses are recognised in the consoclidated statement of
comprehensive incame.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
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{h) Leases
Periods prior to 31 December 2018

Untif 31 December 2018, leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
were classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments were recognised as an expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives under operating leases
were recoghised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Reporting from 1 January 2018

From 1 January 2019, the Group adopted IFRS 16 which removes the distinction between an operating and a finance
lease. The change in definiticn of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether a contract
contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

All existing operating lease commitments are now recognised as right-of-use assets, with corresponding lease liabilities
being presented in the consolidated statement of financial position, with the exception for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (defined as leases with a value of less than
£4k). The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments,
Full details and the impact of the new policy are described in note 25.

Lease incertives are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets and lease. Termination options are
included in a number of property leases across the Group. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive to not exercise a termination option. Periods after terminaticn options
are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to not be terminated.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36.

The interest expense is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease and is included in finance costs in the
statement of comprehensive income. Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives where it is likely the consclidated entity will obtain ownership of the asset, or over the term of the lease and is included
within administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

For short-term leases {lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets, the Group has opted to recognise
a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by IFRS 16. This expense is presented within administrative expenses
in the statement of comprehensive income.

{i) Work in progress (“WIP")

Work in progress represents customer cases which have not yet reached a conclusion and comprises personal injury
cases, services performed ancillary to personal injury cases, non-personal injury cases and group litigation cases.

Contracts for legal services are billed based on time incurred. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
te the unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations under these contracts has not been disclosed.

The Group allocates work in progress between current and non-current classifications based on a historical analysis of the
Group's work in progress balances and velocity rates to determine expected timing of settlements.

{i) Business combinations

A business combination is a transaction or other event in which an acquirer obtains control of one or more businesses and
results in the consolidation of the assets and liabilities acquired. Business combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method.

The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments
issued or liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquired. Deferred consideration payable is measured
at fair value. Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-date fair value.

Goodwill is initially recognised as the excess over the consideration transferred at the acquisition date and the fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The fair value of any naon-controlling interest or previously held
equity interest (in the case of a step acquisition) are added where relevant.

If the fair value of the acquirer's interest is greater than the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the fair value of the
non-controlling interest, and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest (in case of step
acquisition}, the gain is immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a gain from
bargain purchase.
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(k) Intangibles
Software development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the peried in which it is incurred.

Development costs are capitalised when it is probable that the project will be a success considering its commercial and
technical feasibility; the entity is able to use or sell the asset; the entity has sufficient resources and intent to complete the
development and its costs can be measured reliably. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the cost of the intangible
assets over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences when the intangible asset is available for use.

Software development costs are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
These assets have been assessed as having a finite useful life and are amortised over a useful life of 5-8 years.

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost). The fair value of trademarks is based on the discounted
estimated royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the trademark being owned.

Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Trademarks have been assessed as having an infinite
useful life.

Customer relationships

The fair value of customer relationships acquired in a business combination is determined using the multi-period excess
earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are part of
creating the related cash flows. They are assessed as having a finite useful life and are amortised over their useful life of
3 years.

{n Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, intangible assets not yet ready for use and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are therefore tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Assets subject to annual depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances arise that indicates that the carrying amount of the asset may be impaired.

Animpairment loss is recognised where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset is defined as the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows {cash-generating units).

{m) Taxation

Taxation consists of income tax and Value Added Tax (“VAT").
income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax expense or benefit is the tax payable / receivable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for the jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is caiculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the country where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.

Value Added Tax ("VAT’)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except where the VAT incurred is not recoverable
from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs {"HMRC") or Malta Inland Revenue (*“MIR") and is therefore recognised as part
of the asset's cost or as part of the expense item. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, HMRC/MIR is included as part of current receivables or payables
in the consclidated statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the VAT component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the
amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the relevant taxation authority.
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7. Sratement of Significant Accounting Policios connn
{m) Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the applicable tax rates when the assets are
expected to be recovered or liabilities are settled. Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwiil. Deferred tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxabie
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Current and deferred tax for the period are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other camprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in cther
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. VWhere current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

(n) Provisions

Provisions for liabilities are recognised in respect of obligations resulting from past events for which it is probable that the
Group will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement where the amount and/er timing of the settlement is
uncertain. The provisions are stated at the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the statement of
financial position date.

The onerous provision covers the remaining expenditure of rent, rates and utilities from properties that no longer derive
economic benefit in the future. The onerous provisions are stated at the net present value of the amounts payable under
the contracts.

A provision for claims is made for the potential future cost of claims brought against the Group by former customers. The
provision is determined by including the estimated maximum amount payable by the Group under its Professional
Indemnity Insurance Policy on all claims notified to its insurer.

Provisions for dilapidations are recognised on a lease by lease basis and are based on the Group's best estimate of the
likely amount payable.

{o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs inciudes interest expense, finance charges in respect of leases, amortisation of discounts or premiums
and ancillary costs relating to borrowings.

Berrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred, except for borrowing costs incurred as part of the
cost of the construction of a qualifying asset which are capitalised until the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

{p) Foreigh currency translations and balances
The financial statements are produced using the functional currency. The functional currency is Pounds Sterling (GBP).
Transactions and balances

Currency transactions in entities within the Group are translated into functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction.

Fareign currency manetary items that are outstanding at the reporting date (other than monetary items arising under foreign
currency contracts where the exchange rate for that monetary item is fixed in the contract) are translated using the spot
rate at the end of the financial year.
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1. Statamaent of Signihicant Accounting Faoliniza (teneoeew
{q) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and any other employee benefits expected to be settled
within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts based on remuneration rates which are expected
to be paid when the liability is settled. The expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated
absences such as annual leave and accumulated sick leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other
short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables,

Defined contribution pension plan

The Group makes contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans in respect of employee services rendered
during the year. These superannuation contributions are recognised as an expense in the same period as the employee
services are received.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision when a bonus is payable in accordance with the employee’s contract of employment
and the amount can be reliably measured.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment of an employee or group of employees is terminated before the normal
retirement date, or when the entity provides termination benefits as a result of an offer made and accepted in order to
encourage veluntary redundancy.

The Group recognises a provision for termination benefits when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits,
or if earlier, when the termination benefits are included in a formal restructuring plan that has been announced to those
affected by it. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are
discounted and presented as non-current liabilities.

{(n Financial instruments
Classification

The Group has financial instruments in the following category: loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the instruments were acquired, Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at
initial recognition.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments consist of investments in equity, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, lease liabilities and trade and other payables. Non-derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs (if any), except for instruments recorded at fair
value through profit or loss. After initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

Loans and receivables

L.oans and receivables are non-interest bearing, non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. The loans are initially recognised based on fair value plus directly attributable
transactions costs and are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are tested for impairment at each financial year end to establish whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

For loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (including future credit
losses that have not been incurred due to the adoption of IFRS 9 in the current year) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss reduces the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss. The impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss if the amount of the impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and loans from third parties including loans from or other
amounts due to related entities. Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original
debt less principal payments and amortisation. Non-interest bearing financial liabilities for deferred cash consideration on
the acquisitions are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed. The implied interest expense is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Page 31



o~
‘e’
el
——
st
3
Fant
A o
~
o
—
o
G
T
e
03
b
o’.'\
R
o
T
—
ansf
93]
—
et
T3
——r
Y
A
uaandn.
%
oo
o
-
ik
4y
g
.
I

Mo 5T f L B T [
Accounting Policies (oootoase

{s) Impact of new International reporting standards, amendments & interpretations

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the annual reporting year commencing
1 January 2019:

¢ IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’
» |FRS 16 ‘Leases’

The adoption of IFRS 9, which replaces |AS 38 “Financial instruments. Recognition and Measurement’, addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and liabilities. An expected credit losses model replaces
the incurred loss impairment model used in I1AS 39. The classification and measurement basis for the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities have not been materially changead by the adoption of IFRS 9. Further details of the impact are disclosed
in note 25.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 "Leases” retrospectively from 1 January 2019 but has not restated comparatives for the
2018 reporting period, as permitted under the simplified transition provision in the standard. The Group has recognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as “operating leases”
under the principles of IAS 17 “Leases”. The Group has recognised the cumulative effect of initial application at 1 January
2019 in retained earnings. Further details are disclosed in note 25.

(t) New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Greup has not applied the following new and revised IFRS
Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments) Saie or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a business
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material
Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The Directors do not expect that the adeption of the Standards listed above to have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in future periods.
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foanting 24}

2. Critteal Accounnng Judgamonts and Key Sources of BEstunation Uacorsamiy

In preparing these consolidated financial statements following application of the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 1, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The judgements, estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

{a} Critical judgements in applying the Greup’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements that the Directers have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts receognised in financial statements.

Revenue Recognition - Identifying the Performance Obligation

In personal injury matters, contracts with customers generally comprise a single distinct performance obligation, being the
provision of services in pursuit of the successful settlement of a customer’s claim, and the transaction price is allocated to
this single performance abligation.

Some personal injury contracts contain multiple deliverables — such as legal services in respect of a statutory clam and a
common law claim, or initial pre-issue work and litigation work. In such circumstances, these multiple deliverables are
considered to represent a single distinct performance cbligation, given there is a significant service of integration performed
by the Group in delivering these services.

The Group has some contractual arrangements outside of perscnal injury matters that include multiple performance
obligations. In these instances, the transaction price must be allocated to the performance obligations on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis and is identified in the contract.

Recognising Revenue: Stage of Completion

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of a service is transferred to the customer. The Group
recognises revenue in respect of personal injury matters “over time" (as opposed to at a “point in time"). A stage of
completion approach is used to measure progress towards completion of the performance obligation. VWhere a contract
has only been partially completed at the year-end date, revenue represents the fair value of the services provided to date
based on the stage of completion of the performance obligation at the statement of financial date.

Deferred tax asseis

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that management considers that it
is certain that future taxable profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the preparation of the financial statements, assumptions applied in the below estimates may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Impairment of intangible assets

Following the assessment of the recoverable amount of the trademark acquired in the business combination in the prior
period, the fair value of £5.7m is considered recoverable by the Directors. The trademark is deemed to have an infinite life
and therefore is subject to an annual impairment assessment.

Management has estimated the future income attributable to the trademark and has used the applicable royalty rates and
discount rate. Budgets used include forecasts of revenue based on current and anticipated market conditions that have
been considered and approved by the Board. Naturally, the revenue projections are uncertain due to the nature of the
business and unstable market conditions. Revenue is most sensitive to changes in the revenue attributable to each
business sector, particularly surrounding the personal injury services given that this is the largest service pravided by the
Group.

Overall market conditions have seen a significant slowdown due to the outbreak of the pandemic, Covid-19. The sensitivity
analysis in respect of the recoverable amount for the Trademark shows no indications of a significant impairment should
the market continue to slowdown.
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(continued;

2. Critical Accounting Judgemants andd Hay 3nurces oFf Estirnabion Unoertainty
{continuead)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Provision for claims

In estimating the fair value of the liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.

Provision for claims relates to open claims and potential future claims as identified at the end of the reporting year. The
provision is determined based on historical data, taking into account the nature of the existing claim, and expected
reimbursed expense on a case by case basis. A level of judgement is required to be applied based on past experience
and historical performance of similar matters. The provision determined includes the potential maximum amount payable
by the Group.

Revenue Recognition - Estimating the Transaction Price: Variable Consideration — No Win - No Fee Arrangements

The Group provides various services on the basis of No Win — No Fee conditional fee arrangements. The uncertainty
around the fees ultimately receivable under these types of contracts is generally only resolved when a matter is concluded.

Where the Group has sufficient historica! experience in similar contracts in arder to be able to estimate the expected
outcome of a group of existing contracts reliably, revenue is estimated using the expected value method. Fees are only
included in revenue to the extent that it is highly probable that the cumutative amount of revenue recognised in respect of
a contract at the end of a reporting period will not be subject to significant reversal when a matter is concluded.

To determine the probability of success of a case using the expected value method, a level of judgement is required to be
applied based on past experience and historical performance of simitar matters. The estimated amount of variable
consideration is based on the expected fee for the nature of the legal service provided with reference to internal historical
fee levels and relative rates of successful and unsuccessful cutcomes.

Where historical averages are not predictive of the probability of outcomes for a given contract, or where the Group has
fimited historical experience with similar contracts, the expected amount of variable consideration is estimated using a
most likely amount approach on a contract by contract basis. In such circumstances, a level of judgement is required to
determine the likelihood of success of a given matter, as well as the estimated amount of fees that will be recovered in
respect of the matter.

2 Rovenus

G i - B
Revenue F
Fees biled 12853 155,933
Ancillary revenue 67,690 74,695
Other 41 114
S ' S 196,267 230,742
Net movement in work in progress (3,378) {8.075)
Total revenue - 192,889 222,667
1. Dparating (Less) ! Profit from Cor Hnno Activitios

The following items have been charged / (credited) to the statement of comprehensive income tc arrive at the operating
(loss) / profit:

Pariod o

310 S Dnsaotpar
‘Amortisation of intangible assets (note ®) " 5,061
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 10) 1,570
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {note 25) -
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (30)
Operating lease rentals - 8,981
Net foreign currency (gains) / losses (2) 1

Auditors remuneration ) 328 %25
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{onbipad)

B Operating thosst Profit from Sontinu’nyg Activiias coatmasd)

: 2o, ab y N 3;-*&- GiTrh

Audit and audit-related services

Audit of the Company (including consolidated) financial statements 45 250
Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries of the Company 235 625
Other Audit Services (SRA) 48 ] 50

Total audit and aydit-rglatgd sgrvicgs 32&_3 ) _ 925_ _

Deloitte LLP was appointed as auditor on 1 November 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 and subsequent financial periods.

A Raoarattstion of Aepustod E21T0N o flossy F 2o bofars o
Adjusted EBITDA'
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 25 (4,288) -
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 10 (1,223) (1.570)
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 (5,861) (5,0861)
Non-recurring items? (6,013) 119,980
Operating (loss) / profit i C(1,050) 114,340
Net finance costs 7 (8,576) (2,186)
(Loss) / profit beforetax ST (9.627) 112,174

[1] Adjusted EBITDA: The Group calcufates adjusted EBITDA as operating profit before nterest, tax, depreciatian, amertisation and excludes non-recuming
items, The Directors believe that adjusted EBITDA is the mest appropriate approach for ascertaining the underlying trading performance and trends as it
reflects the measures used intemally by sernior management for all discussions of perfermance.

[2] Non-recurring items Costs or income that have been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income which the Directors believe. due to their
nature or size, should be disclosed separately to give a more comparable view of year on year underlying performance. Non-recurring items include costs
associated with restructuring the business including redundancies and office closures as well as settlement proceeds and legal costs related to the Watchstone
case, These casts are disclosed separately as non-recurring items due to their one-off nature and significance.

AU MoanTenurting doms

Redundancies
Restructuring costs
Watchstone settlement

Legal costs 5,192
Gain on bargain purchase - 7 217 (134,634)
{119,980)

Redundancy and restructuring costs have been incurred in relation to the Group's One in 21 strategy. Included within
restructuring costs is expenditure on relocation and office closures.

In June 2017 the Group made a claim against Watchstone Group plc (formerly Quindell ple) for fraudulent
misrepresentation and breach of warranty in relation to the financial performance of the Professional Services Division of
Quindell prior to its acquisition by Slater and Gordon Limited in 2015. A counter claim was made by Watchstone plc. Full
and final settlement was agreed in October 2019, with £11m of funds being received. Associated costs of £6.5m were
incurred during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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3. Emgioyec infonnation

I STy i Earshs

The aggregate employee benefit expense, including Directors, comprised:

Wagés and salaries

Social security costs

Contributions to defined contribution pension arrangements
Total aggregate employee benefits T T

Pension arrangement costs include anly those defined contribution plan costs included within operating costs and the
defined contribution plan charge.

52 Emutog2n Mambars
The average monthly number of people, inciuding Directors, employed by the Group during the year / pericd was:

sa o el fed
e YA R i3

JORETaN! Moo

Headcount by type

Fee earner 743 800
Legal support 308 374
Shared services 947 1,025
1,988 2,199

* The prior pericd Headcoum categories weré op;rat\ons of 1341 employrees'and admini'strartibn of 858 employees. The Grod;) have
updated the category headings this year to show fee earner, legal support and shared services as this is a more accurate reflection of the
categories within the Group.

Directors’ emoluments

Contributions to defined contribution pension arrangements

-:i_'otél Di-rectbrs' hénef'its
During the year ended 31 December 2019 there were six {2018: four} Directors.

The highest paid Director received remuneration of £470,000 (2018: £510,701).

Included within Directors’ emoluments figure above are termination benefits of £115,396 (2018: £185,596) which are
included in operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

During the year three (2018: two) Directors participated in the defined contribution pension arrangements.
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rd R e A P
7. 2l Finance Uosis

Interest receivable

On deposits

Interest payable

Loan
Lease liabilities
Working capital

IGet finance cosrt;“

f. Incoma Tax

Income tax expense

Overseas current tax

Deferred tax

Adjustment for current tax relating to prior periods
Adjustment for deferred tax relating to prior periods

Change in rate of deferred tax
Derecognition of deferred tax asset

Factors affecting the total tax charge for the year / period
The tax charge assessed on the (loss) / profit on ordinary activities for the year / period is lower (2018: lower) from the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 19%). The differences are reconciled below:

ALoss)iprofitbeforetax
At the statutory income tax rate of 19% (2018: 19%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating

taxable income:

Expenses not deductible for tax purpases

Gain on bargain purchase not taxable

Non-taxable income

Adjustments in respect of pricr periods

Change in tax rate on deferred tax brought forward

Deferred tax charged at lower rate
Derecognition of deferred tax asset

Difference in overseas tax rate

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Income tax expense

{3.549)
(3,336)
{1,848)
{8,733)

. (8,576)

T A
RN (ks

‘
L

{1,829)

1,678

(2,080)
74

_(s621)

1,703
(25.579)
(38)
(117}

2

1

3

(567)
3,364
"85

A reduction to the UK corporation tax rate down from 19% to 17% was announced in the 2016 Budget and enacted on 15
September 2016 (to be effective from 1 April 2020). However, in the 2020 Budget it was announced that this reduction in
rate would be reversed with 19% being maintained from 1 April 2020,
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{contnuad;

[$a3

fetangibsle Assots

Cost
At 31 December 2018 4,187 21 5,726 1,096 11,550 22,580
Additions 51 63 - - - 114
Disposals (154) - - - - (154)
At 31 December 2019 4,084 84 5726 1,096 11,550 22,540
e el
At 31 December 2018 979 - - 381 3,701 5,061
Charge for the year 1,416 - - 381 4,064 5,861
On dlsposals 91 - - - - {91)
At 31 December 2019 2,304 . . 762 7,765 10,831
Net book value at 31 December 2019 1780 84 5726 334 3,785 1 1,709
(1 T r
NS
Cost ’ . ' ‘
At 22 September 2017 - - - - - -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary 2,040 1,053 5726 1,096 11,5649 21,464
Additions - 1,370 - - 1 1,371
Disposals (99) (156) - - - (255)
Transfers 2,246 (2,246) - - - -
At 31 December 2013 4,187 21 5,726 1,096 11,550 22,580
e s e e B SRR _oonEE o el wen
At 22 September 2017 - - - - - -
Charge for the period 979 - - 381 3,701 5,061
At 31 December 2018 979 - - 381 3,701 5 061
“Net Booi value at 31 December 2018 3208 21 5726 715 7849 17,519

The customer relationships were acquired as part of a business combination in the prior peried {note 21). They were
recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently amortised on a straight line basis, based on
the timing of the prajected cash flows on the contracts over their estimated useful economic lives.

included within acquired intangibles are software licences and fair valuation adjustments for WIP acquired as part of the
business combination in the prior period (note 21). Software licences were recognised at their fair value at the date of
acquisition and are subsequently amortised on a straight line basis, based on the timing of the projected cash flows on the
contracts over their estimated useful economic lives. WIP recognised as an intangible asset at fair value at the date of
acquisition at as the present value of its future profit and is amortised in line with the realisation of these profits.

Trademarks have been defined as an indefinite life intangible asset, which was acquired through business combinations
and have been allocated to individual cash generating units ("CGUs"} in the UK business for the purposes of impairment
testing.

The recoverable amount of indefinite life intangible asset allocated to each of the CGUs has been determined based on a
value in use calculation as required by |IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. This uses financial budgets and cash flow projections
approved by senior management covering a ten year period.

The value in use is compared to the net carrying amount of the CGU. If the calculated value in use exceeds the net carrying
amount, nc impairment foss is recorded.

For all CGUSs a post-tax cost of capital of 12.0% has been applied. This cost of capital has been assessed with reference
to the Company's weighted average cost of capital and independent third party analysis of its cost of capital.
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{zontinued:

13, Fropoarty. Plant & Equipmant
o T T T T e s - R A
At 31 December 2018 7.140 66 7,206
Additions 582 - 582
Disposals (352) - (352)
.‘At 31 December 2018 7.370 66 7,436
' Depreciamﬁ:)_nh Y S T S
At 31 December 2018 1,537 33 1,670
Charge for the year 1,223 - 1,223
On disposals (303) - (303)
At 31 December 2019 ' o 2,457 33 ' 2,490
Net book value at 3t December 2048  a9t3 33 2948
Praet LR ey
[ B
CoT T T e e e L mIT T
At 22 September 2017 - - -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary 6,636 897 7,533
Additions 574 33 607
Disposals (70) (364) (934)
At 31 December 2018 7.140 66 7,206
‘Depreciation I S o
At 22 September 2017 - - -
Charge for the period 1,637 33 1,670
At 3% December 2018 1,537 33 1,570
"Net book value at 31 December 2018 5603 33 5836
11. Dafarred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recegnised in respect of the following items:

Bl
s

Taxlosses ST 57,082
Property, plant and equipment 2,837 2,086
Other short-term timing differences . o 213 ) 235
Deferred tax asset not recognised N 56,190 59,403
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fcontinuasd)

11 Deferred Tax Assats {conthizd;

EAPEW IO RN
Deferred tax relates to the following:
"Maltese refundable tax credit S o . 7
Other short-term timing differences
Property, plant and equipment
Revenue losses carried forward
“Net deferred tax assets I -
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax assets 4,366 5,992
Deferred tax liabilities on intangibles (1.626) (2,018)
Net deferred tax assets 2740 3974
Non-current deferred tax asset 925 938
Current deferred tax asset 1,815 3,036
"Total deferred tax asset . T 574_0 S 3:9:1;
i FERR I I
L 0ol
Balance brought forward . 3,874
Change in tax rate -
Derecognition of deferred tax asset -
Charge for the year / period (1,159}
Adjustments to prior periods (73
Total deferred tax asset © 2,740
12, Workin Proy-ess
2 Y v
Nbﬁ-cﬁr}'ent
Legal 49,229 46,377
Current
Legal 77,165 83,597
Non-Legal - 3,972
o 77,165 87,569

Non-legal WIP has been reclassified to accrued income during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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R R

13, Trade and Oiner Receivabios

Non-current

Disbursements 67,221 51,685

Allowance for non-recovery (17,474) (11,710

S T 49,747 _ ) 39,975"
Currént

Trade debtors 30,221 32,850

Accrued income 4,218 2,057

Net debtors " "3aa3% 34907
Disbursements T T T qosise 140552
Allowance for non-recovery (28,510) (35,728)

Net disbursements 77 7 " 76688 104,824
Prepayments 7 sa 5316
Other 5412 5,480

Cor e e S 12919 151587

Trade debtors is reported after charging a provision for non-recovery of £26.3m (2018: £35.7m). For the year ended 31

December 2019, the allowance for non-recovery debtors includes an expected credit loss charge as part of the adoption
of IFRS 9, Further details are disclosed in note 25.

The fair value of the trade debtors, accrued income, disbursements and prepayments is considered to be equal to their
carrying amount,

14, Cash

T

11,351

Cash at bank - 26,082 -

At 31 December 2018 cash includes an amount of £0.1m (2018: £6.1m) in respect of cash held in escrow.

15, Trade and Orhar Payablbes

L i Lo
Noh;;::l:lfreht
Legal creditors 12,078 12,963
Current
Trade payables 26,059 20,684
Legal creditors 86,781 97,956
Accruals & deferred income 17,503 30,995
VAT payable 54 6,857
Social security & pension payable 2,537 3,682
Qther creditors _ S 1ees ERLCS
152,885 171,449

*The legal crediters totalling £110,919k in 2018 have been split between current and non-current legal creditors reflecting the dates that
these items fall due.

Included in other creditors is an outstanding balance of £16.5m (2018: £9.1m) in relation to the Group's arrangements for
financing on costs agreed and paid disbursements. The Group has a funding facility in place whereby a third party will lend
on expecied agreed costs and paid disbursements at a given interest rate on personal injury (Ne Win - No Fee) cases.
The total facility available is £30.0m and has a three year term ending 30 June 2022.
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{(contmuzd)

15. Frovisions
Balance as at 31 December 2018 5132 18,242
Adoption of IFRS 15 - (1,088)
Restated 1 January 2019 5132 17,154
Additions 603 5,819
Utilisations (763) {1,340) (2,737) - {4,840)
Releases (756) (113) (3,834) (510) (5,213)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 4,216 1709 3,366 3629 12,920
Analysed as:
Current 2,098 1,094 3,366 3,629 10,187
Non-current 2,118 615 - - 2,733
T T 21 1,709 3,366 3629 12,920

Balance as at 22 September 2017

Subsidiaries acquired 5,467 3,822 8,266 3,846 21,401
Additions 717 659 256 202 1,834
Utilisations (488) (2,128) (1,813) - (4,429)
Releases (564) - - - {564)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - 5132 2,383 6,709 4,048 18,242

Analysed as:

Current 3122 1.714 6,709 4,048 15,593
Non-current S N 2,010 639 - - 2,649
5,132 2,353 6,709 4,048 18,242

The provisions made above have been shown as current or non-current on the statement of financial position to indicate
the Group's expected timing of the matters reaching conclusion.

Dilapidations: The provision represents the future expected repair costs required to restore the Group's leased buildings
to their fair condition at the end of their respective lease terms.

Onerous provision: The provision represents the remaining expenditure from rates and utilities that no longer derive
economic benefit in the future. The onerous provisions are stated at the net present value of the amounts payable under
the contracts. The restated position at 1 January 2019 reflects an adjustment required to the 31 December 2018 balance
for the adoption of IFRS 16.

Claims: The provisions represent the potential future cost of claims brought against the Group by former customers. The
provision is determined by including the estimated maximum amount payable by the Group under its Professional
Indemnity tnsurance Paolicy on all claims notified to its insurer.

Other: The provision is in respect of a potential VAT liability and commissions payable.
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17, Loans

As at 31 December 2019 the Group had outstanding loans payable, which can be analysed as follows:
S ger 202 30 Lo e

"Non-current
Amounts falling due 1-2 years

Shareholders’ Loan 30,029 -
Amounts falling due 2-5 years

Shareholders Loan - 22 444
il [T [ 3‘0,029'*” L 2-_2—444

The Group has an outstanding loan of £30.0m (2018: £22.4m} comprising principal of £24.8m (2018: £20.8m} and interest
of £5.2m (2018: £1.6m). The loan comprises two facilities; the Existing Facility Loan and the Incremental Facility Loan. At
31 December 2019 the Existing Facility Loan had an outstanding balance of £18.0m (2018: £16.4m) including interest
incurred at 10% per annum (2018: 10% per annumy). The Incremental Facility Loan had an outstanding balance of £12.0m
{2018: £6.0m) including interest incurred at 17.5% per annum (2018: 17.5% per annum). The total loan is secured on all
assets of the Group and is repayable in full on 22 December 2021.

18. Share Capital

Balance at 22 September 2017 ' . L . . .

Issued ordinary shares 1,000,014 - - 22,904 22 904
‘Balance at 31 December 2018 1,000,044 - o 22,904 22,904
Issued ordinary shares - 172,004 - 645 645
“Balance at 31 December 2019 1,000,014 172004 - 23,549 23,549

At 31 December 2019 the Company has two classes of shares which carry no right te fixed income. In 2019 the Company
issued 172,004 A Ordinary Shares to Key management personal ("beneficial owners") and were purchased in cash at their
unrestricted market value as at the purchase date. Slater and Gordon UK Nominees Limited holds these shares on behalf

of the beneficial owners.

1y, Related Partins

ooy M pHar s e

The key management have been assessed to be the Group's Executive Leadership Team. During the year ended 31

December 2019 there were nine (2018: nine) key management personnel. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Short-term employee benefits

Wages and salaries 2,120 1,742
Social security costs 275 217
Contributions to defined contribution pens:or\ arrangements 35 27
Total key management compensation - R 243 1986

132 Tranzacrions wib aroun Roiatod Pa

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group issued loans of £0.1m (2018: Enil) to two key management
employees. The outstanding receivable balance for the Group is £0.1m (2018: £nil). The loan atiracts interest at 2.5% and
is repayable after 1 year. There were no other related party transactions during the period to 31 December 2019 other than
the shareholders’ loan referred to in note 17.
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The following subsidiaries as well as the parent company (Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited} form the Group. The
subsidiaries exempt from the requirements relating to the audit of accounts under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
are noted below. The basis of the subsidiaries within the Group is not defined by cwnership but by control of the entity.

o At Pr

Sompag, Name J Fazmphze __A.:‘u.’f_,
Controlied entities
4 Legal Limited United Kingdom' 06466579 100 Exempt Dormant
4 Legal Solutions Limited United Kingdom' 06492865 100 Exempt Legal
Abstract Legal Holdings Limited United Kingdom' 05107527 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Access to Compensation Limited United Kingdom' 05107366 100 Exempt Nor-Legal
Accident Advice Helpline Direct Limited United Kingdom' 05107417 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Accident Advice Helpling Limited United Kingdom' 05121321 100 Exempt Dormant
Accident Advice Insurance Management Group Limited  United Kingdom' 05121320 100 Exempt Dormant
Adroit Financial Planning Limited United Kingdom' 07980535 100 Auvdit  Financial Services
Cab Claims Limited United Kingdom' 05126239 100 Exempt Dormant
Claim4 Limited United Kingdom'’ 05123360 100 Exempt Dormant
Claimsense UK Limited United Kingdom' 05599808 - Exernpt Dormant
Compass Costs Consultants Limited United Kingdom' 04265483 100 Exempt Dormant
Fast Track PPl Limited United Kingdom' 08012611 100 Exempt Dormant
Inteligent Claims Management Limited United Kingdem'’ 05658734 100 Exempt Non-Legal
iSaaS Technology Limited United Kingdom' 07424592 100 Exampt Non-Legal
Legal Facilities Management & Services Limited United Kingdom' 05340220 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Legal One Limited United Kingdom' 04620722 - Exempt Dormant
Legal Two Limited United Kingdom’ 06195622 - Exernpt Dormant
Liberly Protect Limited United Kingdom’ 05657846 100 Exempt Non-Legal
MDL Medical Administration Limited United Kingdom' 03688229 100 Exempt Dormant
Medicalaw Limited United Kingdom' 03447569 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Medici Legal Limited United Kingdom' 04266208 100 Exemnpt Non-Legal
Mobile Doctors Group Limited United Kingdom' 05383361 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Mobile Doctors Limited United Kingdom' 02446332 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Mobile Doctors Solutions Limited United Kingdom' 04215291 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Overland Health Limited Malta’ 49864 100 Audit Non-Legat
Overland Limited Malta? C43412 100 Audit Non-Legal
Overland Malta {Trading) Limited Malta? C43415 100 Audit Mon-Legal
Pannone Napier Limited United Kingdom' 08912957 100 Exempt Dormant
React & Recover Medical Group Limited United Kingdom' 07316438 100 Exempt Non-Legal
React Medical Management Limited United Kingdom' 07315629 100 Exempt Non-Legal
React Medical Reporting Limited United Kingdom' 06872636 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Recover Healthcare Limited United Kingdom' 06836625 100 Exempt Non-Legal
RJW Registrars Limited United Kingdom' 06829712 - Exempt Dormant
Russell Jones & Walker Limited United Kingdom’ 04225001 - Exempt Darmant
Sentinel Alliance Limited United Kingdom' 05107418 100 Exempt Dormant
SGS Business Process Services (UK) Limited United Kingdom' 03851175 100 Audit Non-Legal
Slater & Gordon {UK} 1 Limited United Kingdom" 07895497 100 Audit  Holding Company
Slater & Gordon Collections Limited United Kingdom' 12500854 100 Exempt Non-Legal
Slater & Gordon Trust Corporation Linmed United Kingdom' 08185633 100 Exenpt Dormant
Slater and Gordon EBT Limited United Kingdam' 06519828 100 Exempt Dormant
Slater and Bordon Scotland Limited United Kingdem' SC572803 - Exempt tegal
Slater and Gordon UK Limited United Kingdam' 07931918 100 Audit Legal
Slater and Gordon UK Nominees Limited United Kingdom/' 04432180 100 Exempt Legal
Walker Smith Way Limited Linited Kingdam’ 07016439 100 Exempt Dormant

United Kingdem' 07016446 100 Exempt Dormant

WSW Limited

[1] - Registered office: 58 Mosley Street, Manchester, M2 3HZ

§?7] - Regisiered office: Suite 3, tdeacasa House, G.F Aguis Be Soldanis Street, Birkirkara, BKR, 4850, Malta
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21, DUsiness Coampinalions

In the year ended 31 December 2019 there were no business combinations.

Brior Poscd Busiatss Somhioanns

Acquisition of business — Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited

On 15 December 2017, Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited acquired Slater & Gorden (UK) 1 Limited, comprising of 36
entities.

The principal activities of Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited and its subsidiaries are:

{a) Legal Services
The fargest part of Legal Services is the personal injury business (Pl), which operationally comprises:

e Multi-Track: Complex cases, such as clinical negligence and serious road traffic accidents that take 2 to 5 years, or
sometimes longer, to complete. Fees are generally time-based and require cost negotiation.

e Fast-Track: High volume claims with damages up to £25,000, most with fixed fees, and a typical case duration of 8
months to 2 years.

Cases are brought on a contingent fee and costs basis. Customers take out After The Event Insurance (ATE} to cover
disbursements such as medical and other expert reports, Counse! and Court fees in the event the case fails. The ATE
premium (and tax) is only payable on successful cases.

In addition to PI, Slater and Gordon offers a wide range of Consumer Legal Services, including family, employment,
conveyancing, wills, trusts, probate, criminal law, court of protecticn services and group litigation.

{b} Moter
The Motor business provides services to customers who have had a road traffic accident (RTA), arranging a hire car and

for repair or replacement of their vehicle. Where the customer has suffered a personal injury, they are offered the option
of pursuing a claim using Slater and Gordon Pl services. Motor works with a range of leading insurance providers.

(c) Health

The Health division comprises two businesses, in entities separate from Legal Services:

« Mobile Dostors (MDL), which arranges medical reports for Pl cases, for Slater and Gordon customers, but
predominately for third parties. |t acts as an agency, working with leading providers of medical expertise. These

medical reports form part of the disbursements on Pl cases.

e Overland Health, which arranges rehabilitation {physiotherapy, etc.) and treatment, almost exclusively for Slater and
Gordon P! customers. These costs form part of Pl claims, although as special damages rather than disbursements.

(d)} Adroit
This business provides financial planning advice and services.

The strategic rationale for the business acquisition was to create a standalone UK Group as part of the scheme of
arrangement of Slater and Gordon Limited.
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2. Business Combinations «centin

The final consideration transferred, and the value of the consolidated assets and liabilities assumed at the dates of

acquisition is as follows:

Gain on bargain purchase

it T wmber 2018
£'000
Non-current assets - T
Intangible assets 21,464
Property, plant and equipment 7,533
Deferred tax assets 4,821
Work in progress 51,081
Trade and other receivables 46,883
Total non-current assets . __131,792
Current assets
Work in progress 90,940
Trade and other receivables 150,554
Cash __ 10,558
Total current assets 252,052
Total assets L e 383,844
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 200,564
Current tax 3,594
Provisions ) ) 15,312
Total current liabilities 219,470
Non-current hiabilities
Provisiens _ . . __ 6089
_Jotal non-current liabilities . . 3089
Total liabilities _ 225,559
Netassets 158,285
Consideration
Amount settled in cash 747
Fair value of Promissory Note . , 22,904
Total equity attributable to equity holders in the Company ] 23,651
Gain on bargain purchase recogniggd ~igﬂftate}ment of com preheqﬂxe income 134,634

Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited had determined that the fair value of the consideration transferred does not exceed
the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired therefore, a gain on bargain purchase had been recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Prior to recognising this gain on bargain purchase Slater and
Gordon UK Holdings Limited reassessed whether it had correctly identified all the assets acquired and all the liabilities
assumed in the purchase of Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited, as per the requirements of IFRS 3 paragraph 36. Slater and
Gordon UK Holdings Limited were alsa required to consider the amount of consideration paid.

Under the terms of the acquisition of Slater and Gardon UK by Slater and Gordon Holdings Limited, deferred consideration
is payable up to the first AUS$40 million of the proceeds in respect of Slater and Gordon UK's existing legal proceedings
against Watchstone. As detailed in note 4, the Waltchstone case was settled in October 2012 and none of the settlement
proceeds are attributable to the deferred consideration.

Acquired receivablies

The fair value of trade and other receivables acquired as part of the business combination amounted to £197.4m, with a
gross contractual amount of £280.4m. As of acquisition date, the Group's best estimate of the contractual cash flow not
expected to be collected amounted to £83m.

Revenue and profif contribution
The acquired business contributed revenues of £222.7m and net loss of £22.4m to the Group for the period from 15
December 2017 to 31 December 2018.

Acquisition related costs

Acquisition-related costs amount to £0.2m are not included as part of the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the consclidated statement of profit or locss as part of operating expenses and in operating
cash flows in the statement of cash flows.
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22, Corital Rigk Mavaygameant

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (comprising of interest bearing loans and borrowings, lease liabilities,
and after deducting cash and short-term deposits) and equity of the Group {comprising issued capital and retained
earnings).

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, determined as the proportion of
net debt {o eguity.

TY e e D

i s

Interest bearing loans ' ' 17 30,029 22,444

Lease liabilities 25 28,838 -
Less: cash and short-term deposits M 2608 - (1351)
Net debt _ 32,785 11,003
Equity 125,708 134,993
Netdebtto equity ratio = __ %% B
Net debt to equity ratio excluding impact of lease liabilities 3% 8%

Gearing decreases when excluding the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases. The debt excludes the funding facility due to this
being a working capital arrangement which is repaid from monies received on settlement.

23, Fihpaaeial sl Macagonyont

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks comprising:

i) Credit risk

i) Liquidity risk

iii)) Fair values

iv) Foreign exchange risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for identifying and managing cperational and financial risks.

The categories of financial instruments are as follows:

- "y
Financial assets )
Cash and cash equivalents 14 26,082 11,351
Net trade debtors 13 34,439 34,907
Other debtors and prepayments 13 13,851 11,856
Net disbursements 13 126,436 141,?99
S - . - 200808 202,913
Financial liabilities '
Payables 15 164,963 184,412
Borrowings ) 17 ) ) 330,029 o o 22,444
S 194,992 ’ R Zué,ESE
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Friancial Rese fManagement Loaroo

i} Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group. The main exposure te credit risk in the Group is represented by
receivables (debtors and disbursements) owing to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of those assets as disclosed in the
statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements.

The credit risk associated with cash and cash equivalents is considered as minimal as the cash and cash equivalents are
held with reputable financial institutions in the UK.

Debts are almost exclusively due from insurance companies. The capitalisation of insurers is regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority in the UK. The insurance industry operates a policy holders’ protection scheme to alleviate the impact
of the failure of an insurance company.

No interest is charged on the receivables balances, however late penalty payments become payable at certain dates under
the Association of British Insurers’ General Terms of Agreement. The Group does not hold any security over these balances
ner has the legal right of offset with any amounts owed by the Group to the receivables counterparty.

Management of credit risk

The Group actively manages its credit risk by:

. assessing the capability of a customer to meet its obligations under the fee and retainer agreement;

. periodically reviewing the reasons for bad debt write-offs in order 1o improve the future decision-making process;

. maintaining an adequate provision against the future recovery of debtors and disbursements;

. including in practitioner’s Key Performance Indicators (“KPI's") measurements in respect of debtor levels, recovery
and investment in disbursements;

. providing ongoing training to staff in the management of their personal and practice group debtor portfolios; and

. where necessary, pursuing the recovery of debts owed to the Group through external mercantile agents and the
courts.

Due to the nature of the No Win - No Fee arrangements applicable to the majority of the legal matters managed by the
Group an increase in the required processing time between initiation and settlement and an increase in the ageing of
receivables, particularly disbursements, does not always increase the associated credit risk.

Management performs periodic assessment of the recoverability of receivables, and provisions are calculated based on
historical write-offs of the receivables as well as any known circumstances relating to the matters in progress.

ii} Liquidity Risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance hetween the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of operating

cash flows and committed available credit facilities. The Group actively reviews its funding position to ensure the available
facilities are adequate to meet its current and anticipated needs.

The Group manages liguidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate borrowing facilities are
maintained.
Matarity Anaiyals

The table below represents the undiscounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments and management's
expectation for settlement of undiscounted maturities,

I1-Doc19

ﬁhvlon-derivative financial liabilities B
Trade and other payables 152 885 12,078 164,963 164,963
Lease liabilities 5,111 23,727 28,838 28,838
Provisions 10,187 2,733 12,920 12,920
Borrowings - 30,029 30,029 30,029
Financial liability maturities 168,183 68,567 236,750 236,750
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 171,449 12,963 184,412 184,412
Lease liahilities - - - -
Provisions 15,5693 2,649 18,242 18,242
Borrowings - 22,444 22 444 22 444
"Financial liability maturites =~ 187,042 38,086 225098 225,098
“restated -
jiii) Fair Values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value approximates their carrying amounts as
disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements.
iv) Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on services income, expenses, receivables and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group entities, which is Sterling (GBP).

24, Controlling Party

At 31 December 2019, there was no one party with control of Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries.
Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited is the largest group for which consolidated acceunts are prepared.

25 Aeddoption of Now Accounting Standards

The Group adopted the following standards and amendments from 1 January 2018:

« |IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
s IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The Group has adopted these new standards retrospectively from 1 January 2019 but has not restated comparatives for
the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the simplified transition provisions in the standards. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect on initial application at 1 January 2019 in retained earnings. At 31 December 2019, the
additional charge / (credit) to profit or loss for the year has been reported in the statement of comprehensive income:

Adoption of new standards 0
IFIE{SQﬁFrnancv‘laI Estruments' R . h - ) 11 ) 41
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
Opening charge - 9
Decrease in operating expenses (6,118) -
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 4,288 -
Finance costs for lease Iiagiiitie"s" o 3,336 -
Increase in loss for the year 1,517 50

i) Adoption of IFRS 8

As indicated in note 1, the Group has adopted IFRS 9 which replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and Habilities. The
classification and measurement basis for the Company's financial assets and liabilities have not been materially changed
by the adoption of IFRS 9. The impact of the expected credit loss to retained earnings at 1 January 2019 was reflected in
retained earnings. During the year ended 31 December 2019, an additicnal charge of £11k has been reflected for the
allowance of non-recovery for trade debtors (note 13).
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25, Adopion of MNaw Accoanbing Sranaards moe o
ii) Adoption of IFRS 16

As indicated in note 1, the Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period as permitted under the simplified transition approach within the standard.
Instead, the Group has recognised the cumulative effect an initial application at 1 January 2019 in retained earnings.

In applying IFRS 16, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

« applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

« accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as
short-term leases;

« using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options te extend or terminate the lease;
and

« reliance on previous assessment of whether leases are onerous in accordance with IAS 37: Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset's immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.

The lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’'s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to
the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 12%. The Group has performed the following reconciliation for the measurement
of lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 in relation to the existing cperating lease commitments reported in the period ended
31 December 2018.

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018
(Less): short-term leases not recognised as a liability
Operating lease liabilities before discounting

Discounted using Grroup's incrgmental borrowing rate at the date of-|n|_t_|aiaﬁ|;;;llc_a-1:|'on—m T

Of which are:

Current lease liabilities 1,634
Non—qurre;nt lease Iigpilities o o ) 2209?
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 23,731

The associated right-of-use assets for existing operating leases were measured on a retfrospective basis as if the new rules
had always been applied. The provision for onerous lease contracts of £1,088k required under |AS 17 has been
derecognised at 1 January 2019, The application of IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under |AS
17 resulted in the recegnition of right-of-use assets. The statement of financial position shows the following amounts:

Right-of-use assets : ;
" Property 18127
Computer equipment 1,354 -
Lease liabilities
Current 5111 1,634
Non-current 23,727 22,097

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 December 2019 were £7.0m.
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The statement of comprehensive income shows the following amounts:

i b_t;ﬁfé-c:_i;_fi_dr_l_éharge of right-of—usé_ség-e_t_é N

Property 4,070 -
Computer equipment 218 -
Total depreciation of right-of:LEg assets 4,288 -

Interest on lease liabilities

For tax purposes the Group receives tax deductions in respect of the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities in a manner
consistent with the accounting treatment.

The short-term lease payments during the year ended 31 December 2019 was less than £0.1m. For the vear ended 31
December 2019, the cash paid for the principal portion was £5.2m. As permitted by |AS 7, all cash payments for IFRS 16
has been disciosed within financing activities in the statement of cash flows. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have an
impact on net cash fiows.

286. Subseguent kvents

Convertible Loan Note

In anticipation of the Watchstone plc litigation, Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited and Glas Trustees Limited {"Trustee”)
entered into a Canvertible Loan Notes Trust Deed on 22 December 2017 (as amended on 19 December 2016) to absorb
any proceeds from the litigation. Under this deed Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited issued £250,000,008 loan notes to the
Noteholders.

It was agreed under the deed that once the litigation had concluded, the loan notes would be exchanged for equity in Slater
& Gordon UK Holdings Limited. This took effect by Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited issuing preference shares in the
Company (on a 1:1 basis, by reference to the outstanding Loan Notes, 250,000,008 Preference Shares in total) in
exchange for Slater & Gordon UK Holdings Limited issuing Ordinary Shares to the Noteholders (on a 1:100,000 basis, by
reference to the Preference Shares, 2,500 Ordinary Shares in total). The further issuance of Preference Shares in Slater
& Gordon (UK) 1 Limited to Slater & Gordon UK Heldings Limited, and the issue of QOrdinary Shares in Slater & Gordon
UK Holdings Limited each took place on 20 January 2020.

Debt repurchase

On 31 March 2020, the Group concluded a tender process and commitied to repurchase approximately 2% of its
outstanding shareholder debt from one of its shareholders. This repurchase transaction is expected to conclude in July
2020. Linked to this debt repurchase, the Company will be reducing and cancelling the ordinary shares owned by that
Shareholder shortly after signature of the accounts.

Share Buy Back

Article 41 of the Company’s Articles of Association states the Company may purchase its own shares in any way provided
for by the Companies Act including by way of a purchase out of cash reserves up to the limits provided by the Companies
Act, subject to the approval of the Majority Sharehclders. The Company created a new class of shares during 2019 (A
Ordinary Shares), and in March 2020 repurchased some of these A Ordinary Shares representing appreximately 2% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Appointment of New Chairman

On 29 January 2020 David Neave replaced Nils Stoesser in the position of interim Chairman of the Board. In March 2020,
the Company welcomed its new Chairman of the board, John Connolly.
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Non-current assets

Investments 3 23,651
23,651
Current assets
Trage androthgr re;eivgbfes 4 645 -
. 645 -
Iotaﬁlﬁisjgtf o 24,296 23,651
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 747 747
Total current liabilities 747 747
Net current liahilities {102) {747)
‘Netassets i 23549 22,904
Capital and reserves
Share premium 7 23,549 22,804
Retained earnings - -
Total equity 23,549 22,904

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and not
presented an Income Statement or a Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Company.

The Company was incorporated on 22 September 2017, The comparative periad financial information within the financial
statements therefore covers the 15 month period ended 31 December 2018.

The accompanying notes on pages 54 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30 June 2020.

They were signed on its behalf by:

M D

David Whitmore Alison Wilford
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company number: 10977311
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‘Balance at 22 September 2017 .
Result after tax for the period -

Total comprehensive result for_the period -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Issue of ordinary shares 7 22,904
:I'"t;t_aﬁl‘ir‘:a;sactlons W|th owners in 7th‘9|7r Eapaglt&as;hners - 23,602 o
Balance as at 31 December 2018 . E_Z,SEZ o

Result aﬁer tax for the year -

Total comprehenswe resuft for the year ] ) ) o

Transact:ons with owners in therr capac:ty as owners

Issue of ordinary shares L 7 o 645 o
Total transactlons W|th owners |n thelr capar:lty as owners 645
Balance as at 31 Decem ber 201 9 ) ) 23,549

22,904

22, 904

22,904

The Company was incorporated on 22 September 2017. The comparative period financial information within the financial

statements therefore covers the 15 month period ended 31 December 2018.

The accompanying notes on pages 54 to 56 form an integral par of these financial statements.

SLATER AND GORDON UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

Page 53



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, “Reduced
Disclosure Framework” (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006 {the “Act”). FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure
framework for a 'qualifying entity’ as defined in the standard which addresses the financial reporting requirements and
disclosure exemptions in the individual financial statements of qualifying entities that otherwise apply the recognition,
measurement and disclosure requirements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Unien (EU). The Company
meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100, ‘Application of Financial Reporting Requirements’ as issued by the
Financial Reperting Council.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in pounds sterling (GBP), which is the functienal currency and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000), except when otherwise indicated.

FRS 101 sets out amendments to IFRS as adopted by the EU that are necessary to achieve compliance with the Act and
related Regulations. The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 and not presented an Income Statement or a Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Company alone.

Historical cost convention

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by revaluations to fair value for
certain classes of assets as described in the accounting policies.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is set out below.
(b} Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution in value.

The carrying amocunt of fixed asset investments are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

(c} Receivables

Amounts owed from group companies include amounts relating to the issue of Class A shares within the Company. These
are repayable on demand and do not attract interest.

(d) Payables
Other creditors are stated at cost and are classified as current liabilities if the payment is due within one year or less.

(e) Going concern

Slater and Gordon UK Holdings Limited had net assets of £23.5m and net current liabilities of £0.1m at 31 December 2019.
The net current liabilities are the result of an intercompany payable owed to Slater and Gordon UK Limited. The Directors of
Slater and Gordon UK Limited confirm that this amount will not be recalled within 12 months of the approval of these financial
statements. The Directors have prepared the Company financial statements of Slater & Gordon UK Holdings Limited using
the going concern basis of preparation, on the basis that the Company is included within the Slater and Gerdon Group of
companies in the UK and Malta. The going concern disclosure as set out in the consolidated financial statements of Slater
and Gordon UK Holdings Limited are as follows:

The Group manages its financing via a shareholder loan facility which, including accrued interest, is £30.0m as at 31
December 2019 and is fully drawn down (2018: £22.4m). The Group also takes advantage of a working capital facility to
ensure that the short-term liquidity of the business is alsoc managed, and the Group can fulfil its obligations when they fall
due. The warking capital facility is £30.0m at 31 December 2019 (2018: £20.0m) with £16.5m drawn as at 31 December
2019 (2018; £9.1m).

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net assets of £125.7 million and cash of £26.1 million. The Group has prepared cash
flow forecasts for the foreseeable future based on key assumptions. The key drivers of going concern for the Group are the
achievement of revenues, management of working capital cycle providing cash self-sufficiency in the Group, the level of
case intake based on a strong pipeline and the likely future value of this work. Management has considered these drivers
together with the forecasts and projected cash flow patterns of the Group for the foreseeable future being a period of 12
manths from the date of approval of these financial statements.

The business has considered the impact of Covid-19 on its business. Covid-19 will have a number of impacts with a reduction
in road traffic leading to a reduction in road traffic accidents and less demand for hire cars and repairs, fewer personal injury
claims being incurred due to less movement of the population in public places, temporary restriction on face to face medical
examination and rehabilitation services, temporary closure of court facilities leading to a slowdown in closure of open cases
and delay in completion of property conveyancing matters, which could have a negative impact on the revenue and cash
received into the business. This impact is mitigated in part by reduction in variable marketing costs, participation in the HMRC
Furlough and VAT deferral schemes, reduced operational costs due to the remote working environment and strong cost
management.
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1 Accounting Policias {continued)
(e} Going concern (continued)

The Group has used the 2020 budget as its base case and flexed this for a fall in intake volumes of between 50% to 70%
for a period of three months and reducing to a fall of between 20% to 35% for a further three to four months. It is expected
that business volumes will return to the base case levels of activity in October 2020. For 2020, this resuits in an impact on
revenue of (17)%.and cash flow of (24)% versus budget. Under this forecast the business would still have a minimum of
£7.5m of cash headroom over its shareholder covenants and a minimum of £10.9m of cash headroom on its undrawn working
capital facility.

In addition to the revised forecast {referred to as ‘Moderate') a number of downside scenarios have been considered (namely,
‘Significant’ and ‘Severe'). In respect of the main income streams (Personal Injury, Consumer Legal Services, Health and
Motor), in the Significant scenario these include reductions in intake volumes of 50% 1o 70% for three to four months, and
25% to 70% for a further three to six months. For the full year this has an impact on revenue of (22)% and cashflow of {(48)%
versus budget. Under the Severe scenario these include reductions in intake volumes of 50% to 75% for three te six months,
and 25% to 70% for at least three months and in most streams until the end of the year. For the full year this has an impact
on revenue of (28)% and cashflow of {63)% versus budget.

Even under the most pessimistic modelled scenario, there are sufficient mitigating actions available to the business to ensure
it would be able to meet its liabilities and remain within its shareholder covenants for a period of more than 12 months.

The Company's projections for the period to July 2021 including receipts and payments indicate that Slater and Gordon
expects to pay all its obligations to all stakeholders. Business activity and cash flows are monitored on a regular weekly
basis and continue o be satisfactory. Regular financial forecasts are prepared to monitor the firms funding requirements
through retained profits and borrowing facilities, and projected compliance with shareholders covenants.

The management has reasonable expectations that the Company has adequate resources to continue trading for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the management continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for preparing

these financial statements.
2 Auchit Feas

The audit fee of £83k was borne by Slater and Gordon (UK) 1 Limited, a subsidiary company (2018: £250k).

3 Investinenis
R

“Cost. ] ' ) . '
At start of year / period 23,651 23,651
At end of year / period 23,651 23,651
Provisions for impairment - - . S
At start of year / period - -
At end of year / period - -
Net book value at end of year / period ST T wmEm ;s

Investments comprise of equity shares in Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited, a company incorporated and acquired in the
United Kingdem. The address of the registered office for Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited is 58 Mosley Street, Manchester,
M2 3HZ. The Company has performed an impairment review at 31 December 2019 and does not consider there to be any
impairment on its investment.

4, Tracde and Cther Recoivanias

Curre';lqtmr

Amoeunts owed frem graup companies 645 -

The amounts due from group companies are repayable on demand and do not attract interest.

5. Trade and Qthar Payables

Curemt T Tmmmom e
Amounts owed to group companies 747 747

The amounts owed toc group companies are repayable on demand and do not attract interest.
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g, Related Party Transactions

The Company is taking advantage of the exemption granted under Financial Reporting Standard 101, Paragraph 8(k),
“Related Party Transactions”, not to disclose transactions with wholly owned group companies, which are related parties,
Disclosures related to Directors’ remuneration are made within Note 6 of the consolidated accounts.

7. Shiare Premiwin

Total
o o o : o A S ) R £'000
Balance at 22 September 2017 - . . - -
Issued ordinary shares 1,000,014 - - 22,904 22,904
Balance at 31 December 2018 1,000,014 ST T T T T T z.008 0 22,904
Issued ordinary shares - 172,004 - 645 645
Balance at 31 December 2019 1,000,014 172,004 - 23,549 23549

At 31 December 2019 the Company has two classes of shares which carry no right to fixed income. In 2019 the Company
issued 172,004 A Ordinary Shares to Key management personal ("beneficial owners”) and were purchased in cash at their
unrestricted market value as at the purchase date. Slater and Gordon UK Naminees Limited holds these shares of behalf of
the beneficial owners.

3 Financial Guarantees

On 12 February 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee of a services agreement between RAC Motoring Services,
SGS Business Process Services (UK) Limited and Slater and Gordon UK Limited, each of whom provide services (credit
hire, credit repair or legal services) to custamers of RAC. Annual anticipated fees £1.1m, as adjusted for volumes.

On 22 June 2019, the Company entered into a counter-indemnity (issued in favour of Slater and Gordon Limited ("SGL") of
SGL’s guarantee of the LLP Agreement relating to Slater and Gordon (UK) 2 LLP (the "LLP") dated 30 April 2012 in favour
of the B Members of the L.LP).

= Subseguant Events
Convertible Loan Note

In anticipation of the Watchstone plc litigatien, Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited and Glas Trustees Limited (“Trustee") entered
into a Convertible Loan Notes Trust Deed on 22 December 2017 {as amended on 19 December 2019) to absorb any
proceeds from the litigation. Under this deed Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited issued £250,000,008 loan notes to the
Neoteholders.

It was agreed under the deed that once the litigation had concluded, the loan notes would be exchanged for equity in Slater
& Gordon UK Holdings Limited. This took effect by Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited issuing preference shares in the Company
{on a 1:1 basis, by reference to the outstanding Lcan Notes, 250,000,008 Preference Shares in total) in exchange for Slater
& Gordon UK Holdings Limited issuing Ordinary Shares to the Noteholders (on a 1:100,000 basis, by reference to the
Preference Shares, 2,500 Ordinary Shares in total). The further issuance of Preference Shares in Slater & Gordon (UK) 1
Limited to Slater & Gordon UK Holdings Limited, and the issue of Crdinary Shares in Slater & Gordon UK Holdings Limited
each took place on 20 January 2020.

Capitalisation of preference shares

As above, on 20 January 2020 Slater & Gordon (UK} 1 Limited issued 250,000,008 Preference shares aof £1 each fully paid
at par to the Company. It is intended that the Preference Shares will be reclassified as ordinary shares, ranking equally with
the existing ordinary shares (also owned by the Company) by changing the rights attaching to the shares. Whilst this has
not yet taken place at the date of the Accounts signing, it is intended that this will imminently take place.

Share Buy Back

Article 41 of the Company's Articles of Association states the Company may purchase its own shares in any way provided
for by the Companies Act including by way of a purchase out of cash reserves up to the limits provided by the Companies
Act, subject to the approval of the Majority Shareholders. The Company created a new class of shares during 2019 (A
Ordinary Shares), and in March 2020 repurchased some of these A Ordinary Shares representing approximately 2% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

Appointment of New Chairman

On 29 January 2020 David Neave replaced Nils Stoesser in the positien of interim Chairman of the Board. In March 2020,
the Company welcomed its new Chairman of the board, John Connolly.

Debt repurchase

On 31 March 2020, the Group concluded a tender process and committed to repurchase approximately 2% of its outstanding
shareholder debt from one of its sharehalders. This repurchase transaction is expected to conclude in July 2020. Linked to
this debt repurchase, the Company will be reducing and cancelling the ordinary shares owned by that Shareholder shortly
after signature of the accounts.
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